
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Team 
Leader, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422520

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 22 January 2019

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 30 JANUARY 2019 AT 6.30 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes (Pages 4 - 7)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 9 January 2019.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.

7. 18 North 
Avenue, 
Abingdon, 
OX14 1QN  

Demolition of existing bungalow and 
outbuildings. Erection of 2 x 4 Bed 
semi-detached houses with off-street 
parking and additional vehicle access.

P18/V2226/FUL 8 - 50

8. North of the 
A420 Botley 
Road to south 
of the A423 ring 
road  

A flood alleviation scheme to reduce 
flood risk in Oxford.

P18/V3102/CM 51 - 62

9. The Plough Inn, 
Little Coxwell, 
Faringdon, 
SN7 7SR  

Change of use of existing ground floor 
of public house from use class A4 to 
communal areas, dining room, 
servery and food storage/preparation 
associated with bed & breakfast use 
of site together with the demolition of 
the outbuildings and construction of 
eight letting rooms to the rear.

P18/V2726/FUL 63 - 81

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 9 January 2019 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday 9 January 2019 at 6.30 pm
in The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), 
Stuart Davenport, Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, 
Ben Mabbett and Catherine Webber

Officers: Adrian Butler, Steve Culliford, Emily Hamerton, Penny Silverwood and Stuart 
Walker

Number of members of the public: 17

Pl.98 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman outlined the emergency evacuation arrangements and the procedure for the 
meeting.  

Pl.99 Apologies for absence 

None

Pl.100 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt the minutes of the committee meeting held on 5 December 2018 as 
a correct record and agree that the chairman signs them as such.  

Pl.101 Declarations of interest 

Councillor Catherine Webber declared a personal interest in the application at Abingdon 
School.  

Pl.102 Urgent business 

None

Pl.103 Public participation 

The list of registered public speakers was tabled at the meeting.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 9 January 2019 Pl.2

Pl.104 P18/V2227/RM - Parcel South East A, Crab Hill, Reading Road, 
Wantage, OX12 8HT 

The committee considered reserved matters application P18/V2227/RM for the 
appearance, layout, scale and landscaping for 82 dwellings and associated infrastructure 
on land at Parcel South East A, Crab Hill, Reading Road, Wantage.  

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Mark Gay, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Committee members requested that a condition was included to require electric vehicle 
charging points for the market housing with garages.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with the additional condition as 
detailed above, was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for the reserved matters application 
P18/V2227/RM, subject to the following conditions:

Standard condition:
1. Approved plans.

Pre-occupation: 
2. Details of boundary treatment to plots 17, 57, 80 & 81 to be agreed and 

implemented prior to first occupation.
3. Plots 60 - 74 (which back onto the A417 Reading Road) to be constructed with 

acoustic glazing measures and noise mitigation for external living areas with details 
agreed prior to commencement above slab level.

4. to require electric vehicle charging points for the market housing with garages.  

Informative: 
The applicant is reminded of the obligation of compliance with the relevant conditions on 
the outline application that apply to this phase (e.g. CEMP and LEMP implementation).  

Pl.105 P18/V2049/FUL - Land at Park Farm, East Challow 

The committee considered application P18/V2049/FUL for a residential development 
comprising 87 dwellings, amenity space, access, parking and ancillary development on 
land at Park Farm, East Challow.  

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

The planning officer pointed out a discrepancy in the table at paragraph 5.54 of the report 
in which a reference to Shrivenham should be replaced with East Challow.  He also sought 
the committee’s view on whether a signalised pedestrian crossing and additional 
unallocated parking should be secured by planning conditions, if any refusal of the 
application was subject to an appeal.  

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 9 January 2019 Pl.3

Liz and Steve Gillott, local residents, spoke objecting to the application.  

James Yeoman, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Councillor Yvonne Constance, the local ward member, spoke objecting to the application.  

Committee members considered that the application should be refused and that a 
signalised pedestrian crossing, for reasons of highway safety, and additional unallocated 
parking were both required.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.  

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/V2049/FUL for the 
following reasons:

1. The proposal fails to provide an adequate amount and mix of affordable housing on 
the site to meet objectively identified need in the district. As such the proposal is 
contrary to core policies 22 and 24 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 
1.

2. The proposal is considered a poorly designed, cramped and congested scheme that 
is highway and parking dominated; lacks appropriate focal points, adequate 
unallocated parking spaces, adequate street landscaping, attractive public open 
spaces and results in inadequate living conditions for future residents. As such the 
proposal does not deliver a high quality and sustainable development and is 
therefore, contrary to core policies 35, 37, 38 and 44 of the Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies H23 and DC9 of the Local Plan 2011, the adopted 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015 and paragraphs 117, 118, 122(e), 124, 127, 
128, 130 and 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. In the absence of a s.106 agreement relating to the provision of affordable housing 
and financial contributions towards maintenance of a signalised crossing on the A417 
and associated public consultation, public transport improvements including improved 
bus services through East Challow and bus stop provision, travel plan monitoring, 
changes to the speed limit on the A417, public art, street naming, waste bin 
provision, and the management of public open spaces and play areas, the proposal 
would place unacceptable pressure on these facilities and fail to provide the social 
and recreational services to serve the development. This is considered contrary to 
core policies 7 and 24 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved 
policies DC4, DC7 and H23 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011, and 
paragraph 54 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Pl.106 P18/V2481/FUL - Abingdon School Faringdon Road Abingdon, 
OX14 1BQ 

Councillor Catherine Webber declared a personal interest in this application.  

The committee considered application P18/V2481/FUL for the erection of a three-storey 
education building to accommodate a lodge, house rooms, computer science and 
economic teaching space at Abingdon School, Faringdon Road, Abingdon.  

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 9 January 2019 Pl.4

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Nicky Brock, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/V2481/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement within three years.
2. Approved plans.

Prior to commencement
3. Submission of materials.
4. Submission of window and door details.
5. Submission of landscaping scheme.
6. Construction traffic management plan to be submitted.
7. Foul and surface water drainage details to be submitted.
8. Tree protection plan to be submitted.

Compliance
9. Implementation of landscaping scheme.  

The meeting closed at 8.18 pm

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2226/FUL
SITE 18 North Avenue, Abingdon, OX14 1QN
PARISH Abingdon
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing bungalow and 

outbuildings. Erection of 2 x 4 Bed semi-
detached houses with off-street parking 
and additional vehicle access (amended 
car parking plans submitted 17 October 
2018 and amplified by Daylight & 
Sunlight Study received 20 November 
2018).

WARD MEMBER(S) Margaret Crick
Sandy Lovatt

APPLICANT Willow Spring Homes Ltd
OFFICER Andy Heron

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the 
following conditions:
Standard
1.  Commencement 3 yrs - Full Planning Permission
2.  Approved plans

Prior to occupation
3.  Car parking in accordance with submitted plans

Compliance
4.  Materials in accordance with submitted plans and details  
5.  Permitted Development Restriction - extensions, roof and outbuildings 
6.  Hours of construction work 
7.  Sustainable development - INFORMATIVE 
8.  Works within the Highway - INFORMATIVE
9.  CIL Advisory Drainage – INFORMATIVE
10. Drainage – INFORMATIVE
11. Bats - INFORMATIVE

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application was presented to committee on 14 November 2018. Following 

concerns expressed about a loss in sunlight to neighbouring amenity, 
members resolved to defer the application for a sunlight assessment to assess 
any sunlight implications. The previous committee report and minutes of the 
meeting are attached at Appendix 1.

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2226/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

1.2 The applicants have since submitted a daylight, sunlight and shading analysis 
submitted by ERS Consultants Ltd received on 18th December 2018. Officers 
have reviewed the submitted daylight, sunlight, and shading analysis and are 
satisfied that there will be no harmful impact on neighbouring occupants 
amenity as a result of the proposed development. The daylight, sunlight and 
shading analysis are attached at Appendix 2.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of consultations and representations is contained in the previous

committee report in appendix 1. The Town Council and neighbour comments 
are given below.

Abingdon
Town Council

Object. The Council considers that the proposals 
represent an overdevelopment of the site in terms 
of size, scale, bulk and massing, and one which is 
also out of character with the surrounding area. 
North Avenue predominately consists of
red brick facades. The previous application had a 
facade to the street which blended with the 
predominately red brick street scene of North 
Avenue. The frontage has now been changed to 
the white-rendered design which is
unsympathetic in appearance and character, 
fragmenting and dominating the street scene.

The proposal includes a 2-storey rear section 
which dominates over existing single storey 
extensions in the area. The footprint now extends 
further to the rear, to the east and especially to 
the west compared with the previous application. 
This means that the side of the main building will 
be only 8.3m from the side of no. 20. Given the 
scale of the proposed building this will be 
overbearing.

The Council is concerned that the proposed 
development will have an adverse impact upon 
the amenities of neighbouring properties and in 
particular loss of daylight to Nos 16 and 20. The 
proposals widen the existing access to this site 
and requires the construction of a second access 
point. This will remove at least three of the
available on road parking spaces, further 
compounding the traffic and parking problems we 
have in North Avenue. The proposals also allow 
for future occupiers to drive onto and reverse off 
the site. Consequently, the Council considers that 
the proposals do not allow for safe and convenient 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

access to the site and do not make adequate 
provision for car parking.

Drainage Engineer 
(Vale) 

No objection. We are satisfied sufficient 
information has been submitted with regard to 
drainage details. No conditions required.

Neighbours – 8 
additional letters of 
objection received. 
The grounds for 
objection concern can 
be summarised as:

 No site visit made by sunlight consultants.
 Discrepancies in assessment and 

proposed plans submitted in support of 
application.

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
3.1 See the previous report in appendix 1.

4.0 MAIN ISSUES
4.1 The assessment of the main issues are as set out in the report in appendix 1.

An update on the daylight, sunlight and shading analysis is presented below.

4.2 Sunlight assessment

The applicants have submitted a daylight, sunlight and shading analysis 
produced by ERD Consultants Limited. This is a desk-based study that has 
used photographs supplied to them by the applicant and plans of the 
neighbouring dwellings from previous planning applications.

4.3 The analysis is based upon the Building Research Establishment (BRE) 
guidelines ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight’, which provides the 
criteria and methodology for calculation in connection to daylight and sunlight.
The RADIANCE lighting simulation package, developed by the Lawrence 
Berkeley Laboratory in California, in conjunction with IES modelling software 
and interface has been used to perform the daylight simulations. Calculations 
for Annual Sunlight Availability were performed using IES modelling software
SUNCAST. The results of the assessment indicate that the proposed 
development does not cause loss of daylight and sunlight to any of the 
neighbouring buildings. The report concludes that excellent daylight levels are 
maintained for neighbouring occupants.

4.4 All of the windows and rooms, which face the site of the proposed 
development, within the neighbouring properties have been included within this 
assessment. Neighbouring occupants have raised concerns regarding the 
omission of a ground floor dining room window at no. 16 from the sunlight 
assessment. The ground floor window is covered by a canopy and is currently 
overshadowed by the property’s rear ground floor extension. The sunlight 
assessors have confirmed they are unable to assess daylight impact on 
windows that are shaded by canopies as there will likely already be a loss in 
daylight to these windows.

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

4.5 Neighbouring objectors have also raised concerns that some of the figures on 
the initial sunlight assessment appeared to be incorrect. The sunlight 
consultants have submitted a revised assessment with correct figures stating 
that there were two original typing errors that occurred.

4.6 The image below shows the elevations of windows at no’s. 16 and 20 that have 
been tested as part of the sunlight assessment.

4.7 Based on the BRE document, the following methods were used for measuring 
the daylight and sunlight:
- Vertical Sky Component (VSC).
- No Sky Line.
- Average Daylight Factor (ADF).
- Annual probable sunlight hours (APSH).

4.8 Changes to the vertical sky component were considered negligible. Daylight 
factor results are showing that the rooms will maintain their previous daylight 
factor with negligible changes. Moreover, the Sky Line is not affected for all 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

rooms for existing and proposed conditions. The Average Probable Sunlight 
Hours (APSH) also did not show any major reductions. Therefore, the 
proposed development does not cause loss of daylight and sunlight to any of 
the neighbouring buildings.

4.9 Officers have reviewed the submitted daylight, sunlight, and shading analysis 
and are satisfied that there will be no harmful impact on neighbouring 
occupants amenity as a result of the proposed development. The daylight, 
sunlight and shading analysis is considered to conform with the guidance 
contained within the BRE site Layout planning for daylight and sunlight (2011).

4.10 Conditions

The applicant has submitted additional details to satisfy the previously 
recommended pre-conditions (3, 4, 5 and 6) concerning boundary details, 
landscaping, drainage, and slab levels. The drainage officer has been 
consulted and is satisfied that no further information is required, recommending 
no objection. Officers are also satisfied that the proposed boundary details, 
landscaping, and slab level details are satisfactory. There are therefore no pre-
commencement conditions recommended as part of this application.

5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1 Following receipt of the daylight, sunlight and shading analysis officers consider 

the proposal to be acceptable. The daylight, sunlight and shading analysis is 
considered to conform with the guidance contained within the BRE site Layout 
planning for daylight and sunlight (2011).

5.2 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to 
the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s policies 
hold limited weight.

5.3 The application will provide an economic and social role via the additional 
residents who will use local services, and business. In terms of the 
environmental role, limited harm has been identified with respect to the impact 
on the surrounding character and appearance of the area and neighbouring 
amenity.

5.4 There are no technical objections to the proposal, subject to appropriate 
conditions. 

5.5 Overall in the planning balance, the benefits of the scheme are considered to 
outweigh the limited harm that has been identified. As such, the application is 
recommended for approval.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
statutory Development Plan comprises;

- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1
- The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031
- Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon, 
           Radley, Great Coxwell, and Longworth.

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF)
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG)
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document 
            (SPD) (March 2015)
- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 
           (December 2016)
- Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
            Additional Sites
- Building for Life 12

Other Relevant Legislation and guidance

- Human Rights Act 1998
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into  
           account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this  
           report.
- Equality Act 2010
- In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its 
           equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the   
           Equality Act 2010.
- BRE Site layout planning for daylight and sunlight (2011)

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

DC5  -   Access
DC6  -   Landscaping
DC7  -   Waste Collection and Recycling

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

DC9  -   The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC12  - Water Quality and Resources

The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites complements 
the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for the Vale's 
proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be met within the 
City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed development management 
policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which replace the saved 
policies of the Local Plan 2011.  It also allocates additional development sites 
for housing.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to:
• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the 
           preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies 
          (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight 
           that may be given); and
• The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan 
           to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging  
           plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may   
           be given).

The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: 
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. The draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 is 
currently under examination.

Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging Local 
Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight.

The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development consist 
of:

CP4a – Meeting our housing needs
DP2  -   Space standards
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP25 – Noise pollution
DP28 -  Waste collection and recycling

Case officer – Andy Heron
Email – andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone – 01235 422600

Page 14

mailto:andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 1

 
 

 APPLICATION NO. P18/V2226/FUL 

 SITE 18 North Avenue ABINGDON, OX14 
1QN

 PARISH ABINGDON
 PROPOSAL Demolition of existing bungalow and 

outbuildings. Erection of 2 x 4 Bed semi-
detached houses with off-street parking 
and additional vehicle access (amended 
car parking plans submitted 17-10-2018).

 WARD MEMBER(S) Margaret Crick 
Sandy Lovatt

 APPLICANT Willow Spring Homes Ltd 
 OFFICER Andy Heron
 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

 Standard 
1 : Commencement 3 yrs - Full Planning Permission 
2 : Approved plans 
 
Prior to development 
3 : Boundary details to be submitted 
4 : Landscaping scheme to be submitted 
5 : Drainage details to be submitted  
 
Prior to occupation 
6 : Car parking in accordance with submitted plans 
 
Compliance 
7 : Materials in accordance with submitted plans and details   
8 : PD Restriction - extensions, roof and outbuildings  
9 : Hours of construction work  
10 : Sustainable development - INFORMATIVE  
11 : Works within the Highway - INFORMATIVE 
12 : CIL Advisory Drainage – INFORMATIVE 
13 : Drainage – INFORMATIVE 
14 : Bats - INFORMATIVE 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee at the Development 

Manager’s discretion following a call-in request from one of the local members, 

Page 15



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 2

Councillor Sandy Lovatt. Councillor Lovatt has raised concerns with the size 
and mass of the building and the potential impact on neighbouring amenity. 
 

1.2 The site is located within a residential area in north Abingdon. Abingdon is a 
market town within the Abingdon-Oxford Fringe Sub-Area. A site location plan 
is provided below: 
 

 
 

1.3 The site currently consists of a 3 bedroom pitched roof bungalow situated in a 
spacious plot. Vehicle access is to the south via North Avenue. The dwelling is 
situated within a mixed street scene of bungalows, detached and semi-
detached dwellings. 
 

1.4 Planning consent is sought to demolish the existing dwelling and replace it 
with a pair of semi-detached 4 bedroom houses. The dwellings will have an 
overall width of 16.52 metres, and a maximum depth of 16.73 metres. The 
dwellings are proposed to have a slate pitched roof to a maximum height of 
8.86 metres. The dwellings are also proposed to have a two-storey rear (north 
elevation) pitched roof gable with a smaller single storey wrap around 
extension to the sides and rear elevation.  
 

1.5 The houses will be constructed of facing brick with a white render finish on the 
first floor. Each property will have its own vehicle access via North Avenue 
with on-site car parking for two vehicles. A small 0.6 metre high brick wall will 
be built adjacent to the north of North Avenue whilst a small grassed front 
garden area is proposed between each dwellings car parking area. 
 

1.6  This application follows a recent planning application (P17/V2850/FUL) 
recently dismissed at appeal for the erection of six 1 bed flats. The appeal was 
dismissed but only on the grounds that the development would represent an 
over-intensive use of the site. The application was refused by planning 
committee for two reasons: 
 

Page 16



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 3

1. That the scale bulk and design and the number of flats would represent a 
cramped form of development which would be out of keeping with the area, 
and; 
2. The scale, bulk and design and relationship to neighbouring properties in 
particular No 16 and No 20, would harm the amenity of these neighbouring 
properties by being overbearing and oppressive, leading to a loss of light.  
 

1.7 Extracts from the application plans for this current application are attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the responses received is set out below. Comments made can 

be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 

2.2  
Abingdon Town Council No objection. 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Highways liaison 
officer 

No objection. The proposed car 
parking provision and access are 
acceptable and should be conditioned 
to be retained accordingly. An 
informative to advise the developer 
that formal approval must be granted 
from the County Council for any 
works carried out on the public 
highway is suggested. I also 
recommend a condition for details of 
boundary treatment to be submitted. 

Waste management – Vale 
 

No objection. 

Countryside officer – Vale No objection. No objection on the 
basis of ecology. The existing 
bungalow is in a good state of repair, 
with no obvious external bat roosting 
opportunities or accesses to the roof 
void. The roof has interlocking tiles, 
making bat habitation less likely. I do 
not consider that there is a 
reasonable likelihood that bats would 
be impacted by the proposed 
development. If permission is granted 
then I recommend that the short bat 
informative is added as a 
precautionary measure. 

Drainage – Vale No objection, subject to condition. 

Forestry officer – Vale No objection, subject to condition.  

Page 17



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 4

 
I welcome the revised position of the 
parking spaces, the benefit is 
twofold; it avoids pressure for a 
pruning solution to address debris 
falling on cars and the existing roots 
will not be compromised by works 
associated with the construction of 
the parking spaces. 
 
One of the parking areas slightly 
breaches the root protection area 
(RPA) of the northern most Lime but, 
as this is where the existing garage is 
constructed, the compacted ground 
will already act as a constraint for root 
development. The consequences, 
therefore, of breaching the RPA at 
this point will not have a significant 
impact on the future health or 
development of the mature Lime. 

Archaeology Team – 
Oxfordshire County 
Council 
 

No objection. 

Neighbours – 11 letters of 
objection received. The 
grounds for objection 
concern can be 
summarised as: 

 Overbearing impact. 
 Impact on the character and 

appearance of the area. 
 Loss in privacy. 
 Loss in sunlight. 
 Traffic implications. 
 Harm to wildlife. 

 
 
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P17/V2850/FUL - Refused (01/02/2018) - Appeal dismissed (20/08/2018) 

Demolition of existing bungalow and outbuildings. Erection of 6 x 1 Bed flats 
with the provision of 6 parking spaces with turning area, 12 covered cycle 
spaces and enclosed refuse store.  (Amended and additional plans and parking 
survey received 30 November 2017.) 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
P17/V1505/PEM – Pre-app enquiry (26/07/2017) 
The demolition of the existing dwelling, erection of a 2.5 storey building with 9 x 
1 Bedroom flats. The provision of 9 off-street parking spaces, new access and 

Page 18



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 5

associated amenity, refuse and cycle stores.  
 
P15/V1748/PEM – Pre-app enquiry (04/09/2015) 
Demolition of existing bungalow, construction of 2x3 bed semi-detached 
dwellings and 1x3 bed detached dwelling with associated off street parking (2 
spaces per dwelling). 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The application has been considered under the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The 
scale of the proposal is below relevant thresholds and the locality has no 
recognised specific environmental sensitivity. Therefore, an Environmental 
Statement is not required. 
 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main considerations in determining this application are; 

 
 Principle of development 
 Design and the impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Impact on neighbouring amenity 
 Highway safety 
 Impact on local wildlife 
 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 Sustainable development 

 
5.2 Principle of development 

The settlement hierarchy set out in Core Policy 3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
identifies Abingdon as a market town within the Abingdon-Oxford fringe sub-
area. Market towns are defined as settlements that have the ability to support 
the most sustainable patterns of living within the Vale through their current 
levels of facilities, services and employment opportunities. 
 

5.3 Market Towns have the greatest long-term potential for development to provide 
the jobs and homes to help sustain, and where appropriate, enhance their 
services and facilities to support viable and sustainable communities in a 
proportionate manner. 
 

5.4 Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that there is a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development within the existing built area of market 
towns. The site is situated within an urban area within close proximity to local 
employment, services and facilities. 
 

5.5 The NPPF is clear that local planning authorities should look to significantly 
boost the supply of housing in line with the principles of sustainable 
development. Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 sets out the 
Council’s approach to delivering new homes and retaining the housing stock.  
New homes will be located in accordance with the settlement hierarchy outlined 
in Core Policy CP3.  

Page 19



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 6

 
5.6 The development is located in the settlement of Abingdon within an area that 

benefits from a range of services. It would create a net increase of one 
additional residential unit in a highly sustainable area of the Vale. 
 

5.7 In view of the above the principle of development is therefore acceptable 
providing it accords with other relevant development plan policies. 
 

5.8 Design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area 
The NPPF states that securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond 
aesthetic considerations. Great weight should be given to outstanding or 
innovative designs which raise the standard of design more generally in the 
area. Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to 
take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an 
area and the way it functions. 
 

5.9 Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that new development must 
demonstrate high quality design that responds positively to the site and its 
surroundings, creating a distinctive sense of place through high quality 
townscape that physically and visually integrates with its surroundings. It adds 
that development must be visually attractive, and the scale, height, massing, 
and materials should be appropriate to the site and its surrounding context. 
 

5.10 The previous application sought consent for a two and half storey building with 
a two-storey rear projection. The appeal inspector concluded that the size and 
form of the building would not be too dissimilar from the adjoining dwellings at 
no’s. 14/16 and 20/22 (which are semi-detached houses). The appeal decision 
is attached at appendix 2. 
 

5.11 This current proposal seeks consent for a building with a two-storey rear 
projection with a side and rear single storey wrap around. The building will 
have a larger footprint than the appeal proposal due to the proposed single 
storey elements. However, the main two storey element will have a reduced 
depth of 1.7m less than the appeal proposal. The building is now also sited 
centrally within the plot which helps reduce any potential overbearing impact. 
The dwellings will not be built to a height above the neighbouring properties 
either side, nor will the footprint of the building be constructed forward of the 
surrounding building line. Furthermore, the proposed design is considered to 
improve the local character and features of the surrounding area. For example, 
the front garden area to the front of each dwelling will soften the impact on the 
surrounding street scene. Landscaping and boundary detail conditions will be 
recommended to enable officers to manage the site and reduce any potential 
impact on the area. 
 

5.12 The surrounding dwellings in the street are a mixture of styles and sizes which 
give the street variety. The proposal will look different to the existing dwelling; 
however, it is considered that the proportions and siting of the pair of semi-
detached properties will not look out of keeping with others in the street. It is 

Page 20



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 7

also important to note that the appeal inspector stated that whilst the change 
from a single storey bungalow to a two-storey building would be noticeable, the 
height and gaps between such buildings would not detract from the character 
of this location. 
 

5.13 Bay windows and light coloured render, referred to by objectors, are features 
that are seen on existing buildings within the street. The proposed materials will 
reflect the local area and the detailed design is considered to be traditional in 
appearance. 
 

5.14 The appeal dismissal was centred on the number of individual households and 
the creation of a mini car park in the front garden area which would be at odds 
with the prevailing pattern of development. The inspector noted that there were 
other examples of gardens given over to parking within close proximity to the 
site. However, it was acknowledged that these examples appeared to relate to 
single households. 
 

5.15 A key difference between this current application and the previously refused 
application is that the current proposal is for only 2 residential units rather than 
6. The plot sizes and private amenity space would be commensurate with the 
neighbouring semi-detached properties. Each dwelling would have two car 
parking spaces and a small front garden. The parking is considered 
proportionate and would be not appear out of keeping with the street. 
 

5.16 In view of the above the design and appearance of the proposed development 
is in compliance with the advice contained within the NPPF, and CP37 of the 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1. 
 

5.17 Impact on neighbouring amenity 
Core Policy 37 of the Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DC9 of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 are of importance with regard to the potential 
impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy DC9 states that development will not 
be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring 
properties and the wider environment. 
 

5.18 The Inspector found that the appeal proposal would not materially result in the 
loss of light or be materially overbearing for neighbouring occupants. This 
current proposal has been designed so that the building is further away from 
no. 16 than the appeal proposal. At its closest point the proposed building 
would be 8.3m from no. 16; this is an improvement on the previous appeal 
scheme which was as near as 6.4m. The side of the proposed building would 
be 11m from the side of no.16’s rear kitchen extension and windows, with the 
two-storey rear element being 13m. This is also an improvement on the appeal 
scheme which was 8.7m and 11m for the same elements. Given the two-storey 
part is at least 2m further away it would have less impact than the appeal 
proposal. 
 

5.19 The eaves of the single storey wrap around element would be 2.2m in height 
and the ridge would be 4.1m. Given the existing 2m high boundary hedge, the 

Page 21



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 8

main part of the single storey element that would be visible to the neighbours 
would be the roof. The single storey is staggered away from the neighbour’s 
boundary whilst the roof pitches away. The building as a whole does not 
encroach a 40 degree line from the neighbours rear facing windows, as 
advised in the Council’s design guide SPD.  
 

5.20 The proposal would be closer to no. 20, due to the re-siting of the building more 
centrally within the plot. The side of the main building would be 8.3m from the 
side of No 20. This however is a reasonable distance and considered 
acceptable. It is considered that the staggered nature of the building and the 
pitched roof away from the boundary helps to reduce impact on the 
neighbouring occupants. No first-floor side windows are proposed, only side 
rooflights to the rear bedrooms and stairwells. This is considered acceptable 
and would not result in direct overlooking of the neighbours. 
 

5.21 Neighbours have requested that permitted development rights are removed to 
prevent the building being increased. Officers consider it reasonable in this 
case to remove permitted development rights for extensions and roof 
alterations to the dwellings, and the siting of outbuildings. This means that any 
future occupier would require planning permission should they wish to extend 
their house. 
 

5.22 The impact upon neighbouring amenity will be minimal as the dwelling will be 
sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. Furthermore, the 
scale of development is not considered to create a harmful impact towards 
neighbouring occupants. It is therefore considered that the criteria contained 
within Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and DC9 of the Local Plan 
2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 2 will be adhered to. 
 

5.23 Highway safety 
The NPPF promotes sustainable transport modes, whilst seeking to ensure that 
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; and any 
significant impacts from the development can be mitigated. Paragraph 109 
states that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 
 

5.24 Oxfordshire County Council as highway authority have reviewed the proposed 
plans raising no objections, subject to condition. Adequate car parking and 
access is available for the proposed dwellings. The car parking meets the 
County Council car parking standards with two car parking spaces for each 
dwelling. Furthermore, the site is situated within a highly sustainable area with 
excellent bus links within close proximity that regularly serve Oxford and 
Abingdon. 
 

5.25 As in the previous proposal a number of objections have been received with 
regards to the impact on the highway and parking as a result of the proposal. It 
is important to note that the appeal proposal was not refused based on the 

Page 22



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 9

impact to the highway or parking. 
 

5.26 A parking statement and survey have been submitted for this application to a 
method approved by the highways authority. Vehicles from both dwellings 
would reverse out into the road, this is not dissimilar to other properties on the 
street. The highway officer has not raised any objection to the layout of the 
parking. Officers therefore consider there are no grounds to refuse the 
application on highway grounds. 
 

5.27 It is therefore considered that the proposed development will comply with the 
criteria contained within Policy DC5 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
Saved Policies, Policy CP35 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 
1, Policy DP16 of the draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2, and 
the NPPF. 
 

5.28 Impact on local wildlife 
A neighbouring objection has been received concerned with the impact the 
development would have on local wildlife. The Council’s ecologist has been 
consulted raising no objection. The existing bungalow is in a good state of 
repair, with no obvious external bat roosting opportunities or accesses to the 
roof void. The roof has interlocking tiles, making bat habitation less likely. The 
ecologist has confirmed that it is unlikely that bats would be impacted by the 
proposed development. However, a bat informative is recommended as a 
precautionary measure in case bats are found during construction. 
 

5.29 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Policy CP7 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 states that the 
Council will work with infrastructure providers and stakeholders to identify 
requirements for infrastructure provision and services for new development and 
will seek to co-ordinate infrastructure delivery. The Council has implemented its 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as from 1st November 2017. Planning 
applications which are decided after 1st November 2017 may be liable to pay 
the levy. 
 

5.30 The proposed new build in terms of the gross internal floor space area (GIA) as 
defined by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) is 230m2. Under 
the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by Vale of 
White Horse Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations, new dwellings and residential development of 100m2 or more will 
be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy. In this instance the 
application is CIL liable with a total CIL liability cost of £31,413.82. 
 

5.31 Sustainable development 
When considering development proposals, the Council is required to take a 
positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 

5.32 The National Planning Policy Framework places a strong emphasis on 
sustainable development. All planning applications must result in sustainable 

Page 23



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 10

development with consideration being given to economic, social and 
environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal. The proposed 
development would have a minimal impact upon the local services which 
operate in Abingdon. The environmental considerations have been assessed in 
terms of the impact on the character and appearance of the area, and for the 
reasons given above are considered acceptable. Social considerations overlap 
those of environmental in terms of amenity. As these have been found 
acceptable the development is considered to constitute sustainable 
development. 
 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of 

the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to 
the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s policies 
hold limited weight.  
 

6.2 Sustainable development has three strands - social, economic and 
environmental. The site is within a sustainable location. The delivery of new 
housing has economic and social benefits to the district.  Although there would 
be a change environmentally to the local area officers consider that this change, 
as set out above, would not be sufficient to cause harm that would justify 
refusing the proposal. Officers are satisfied that the reasons in the appeal 
decision have been addressed. There are no objections from technical 
consultees to the application. Therefore, in weighing up the planning balance, 
officers consider the scheme is acceptable and recommend approval. 
 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 

the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
statutory Development Plan comprises; 
 
- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
- The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies 
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031 
- Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon,  
           Radley, Great Coxwell, and Longworth. 
 

 Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular: 
 
- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF) 
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG) 
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document  
            (SPD) (March 2015) 
- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)  
           (December 2016) 

Page 24



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 11

- Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and  
            Additional Sites 
- Building for Life 12 
 

 Other Relevant Legislation 
 
- Human Rights Act 1998 
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into   
           account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this   
           report. 
- Equality Act 2010 
- In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its  
           equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the    
           Equality Act 2010. 
 

 The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of: 
 
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy 
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs 
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area 
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 

 The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of: 
 
DC5  -   Access 
DC6  -   Landscaping 
DC7  -   Waste Collection and Recycling 
DC9  -   The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses 
DC12  - Water Quality and Resources 
 

 The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites complements 
the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for the Vale's 
proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be met within the 
City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed development management 
policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which replace the saved 
policies of the Local Plan 2011.  It also allocates additional development sites 
for housing. 
 

 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to: 
• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the  
           preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 
• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies 

Page 25



Appendix 1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 14 November 2018 

 12

          (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight  
           that may be given); and 
• The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan  
           to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging   
           plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may    
           be given). 
 

 The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: 
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. The draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 is 
currently under examination. 
 

 Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging Local 
Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight. 
 

 The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development consist 
of: 
 
CP4a – Meeting our housing needs 
DP2  -   Space standards 
DP16 – Access 
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity 
DP25 – Noise pollution 
DP28 -  Waste collection and recycling

 
Case officer – Andy Heron 
Email – andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone – 01235 422600 
 

Page 26



Daylight, 
Sunlight & 
Shading 
Analysis 

18 North Avenue, 
Abingdon, OX14 1QN 

ERS Consultants Ltd. 
Second Floor, 27-31 High Street 
Kidlington,  
Oxfordshire, OX5 2DH 
Tel  01865 378885 
Email: info@erscltd.co.uk  
Web: http://www.erscltd.co.uk/ 

Appendix 2

Page 27



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

ERS Consultants Ltd has been instructed to carry out a detailed daylight, sunlight & shading 

analysis on the potential changes to light amenity to the neighboring properties for 18 North 

Avenue, proposed project, located at Abingdon, OX14 1QN.   

The analysis is based upon the Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines ‘Site 

Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight’, which provides the criteria and methodology 

for calculation in connection to daylight and sunlight. 

The RADIANCE lighting simulation package, developed by the Lawrence Berkeley 

Laboratory in California, in conjunction with IES modelling software and interface has been 

used to perform the daylight simulations. 

Calculations for Annual Sunlight Availability were performed using IES modelling software 

SUNCAST. 

The results of the assessment indicate that the proposed development does not cause loss 

of daylight and sunlight to any of the neighboring buildings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

3 
 

INDEX 

 

 

CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2 

SECTION 1    INTRODUCTION 4 

SECTION 2    DAYLIGHT AND SUNLIGHT TESTS & RESULTS 7 

Tested Elevations 7 

Vertical Sky Component (VSC) 10 

Average Daylight Factor (ADF) 12 

Annual probable sunlight hours (APSH) 12 

No Sky Line 14 

CONCLUSION 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 29



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

4 
 

SECTION 1    INTRODUCTION 

GENERAL 

 ERS Consultants Ltd has been appointed to carry out an analysis on the potential 

changes to light amenity to the neighboring properties for the 18 North Avenue 

proposed project, located at Abingdon, OX14 1QN. 

 The BRE document; ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight’ has been used 

as the base for this assessment. 

 The proposed building and the neighboring buildings have been modelled using 

Integrated Environmental Solutions Virtual Environment (IES-VE), version 2018. 

 All of the windows and room, which face the site of the proposed development, within 

the neighboring properties have been included within this assessment. 

 The adjacent dwellings that required further analysis were: 16 and 20 North Avenue. 

Therefore, Windows and glazed doors, that might be at risk of changes to light 

amenity have been tested, the location of each of those windows/doors can be 

identified in Figures 5, 6, 7 & 8.  

 Based on the BRE document, the following methods were used for measuring the 

daylight and sunlight: 

o Vertical Sky Component (VSC) 

o No Sky Line 

o Average Daylight Factor (ADF) 

o Annual probable sunlight hours (APSH) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

5 
 

THE SITE 

The site is located in Abingdon (18 North Avenue, OX14 1QN), the location in the IES model 
was assigned as Swindon.  
 

 
 

 

DOCUMENTS CONSIDERED 

The model has been constructed based on the architectural drawing provided, a list of the 

drawing references are listed in Table 1 below. 

Table 1: Drawings reference 

Description Drawing Reference 

Floor Plan PA-01 Location Plan 
PA-02 Existing Block Plan 
PA-03 Proposed Block Plan_Rev PL1 
PA-04 Proposed Plan_Rev_PL2 

Elevations & 
Elevations 

PA-05 Proposed Elevations 
PA-06 Proposed Street Elevation 
PA-08 North-west view 
PA-09 North-east view 

Figure 1: Site Location 

Page 31



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

6 
 

 

 

Figure 2: View from North Avenue (Existing) 

 

 

 

 

 

        Figure 3: South Elevation (from North Avenue) proposed 

Page 32



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

7 
 

SECTION 2    DAYLIGHT AND SUNLIGHT TESTS & RESULTS 

TESTED ELEVATIONS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 4 Site Plan indicating the elevations’ of windows tested 

a 

 

b 

 

c 

 

d 

 

Page 33



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

8 
 

 

Figure 5 Elevation (a) windows tested – 20 North Avenue (N) 

 

Figure 6: Elevation (b) windows tested – 20 North Avenue (E) 

 

Page 34



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

9 
 

 

Figure 7: Elevation (c) windows tested –16 North Avenue (N) 

 

 

Figure 8: Elevation (d) windows tested – 16 North Avenue (W) 

If any part of a new building or extension measured in a vertical section perpendicular to a 

main window wall of an existing building, from the centre of the lowest window, subtends 

an angle of more than 25 degree to the horizontal, then the diffuse daylighting of the existing 

building may be adversely affected.  

Page 35



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

10 
 

Based on the site layout and the proposed drawings, it is clearly shown that the existing 

buildings of 16 and 20 North Avenue facing the proposed dwelling are not falling below 25 

degree line. Therefore, more detailed analysis is required. 

No further analysis is required for the 17 and 19 North avenue dwellings, as they fall below 

the 25 degree line. 

 

 

Figure 9: North elevation of the existing 17 and 19 North Avenue dwellings. (Facing the new 

development) 

 

In Table 3 all the tested dwellings and windows/ Glazed doors are listed. Reasonable 

assumptions were made for the internal layout and room heights of the rooms behind the 

fenestrations. 

VERTICAL SKY COMPONENT (VSC) 

The BRE document definition of the (VSC) is: Ratio of the part of illuminance, at a point on a 

given vertical plane, that is received directly from a CIE standard overcast sky, to illuminance 

on a horizontal plane due to an unobstructed hemisphere of this sky. Usually the ‘given 

vertical plane’ is the outside of a window wall. The VSC does not include reflected light, 

either from the ground or from other buildings. 

The VSC is usually expressed as a percentage and the maximum value for a completely 

unobstructed window is slightly less than 40%. The recommendations set down in the BRE 

report,’ Site layout for daylight and sunlight, a guide to good practice’, would indicate, for 

residential properties, that a VSC value of greater than 27% is acceptable.   

The BRE guide explains that diffuse daylight may be adversely affected if, after a 

development, the VSC is both less than 27% and less than 0.8 times its former value. 

Page 36



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

11 
 

It should be noted that the Guide itself, within the introduction, states that the advice given 

was not mandatory and the Guide should not be seen as an instrument of planning policy, its 

aim being to help rather constrain the designer. Although it gives numerical guidelines, these 

should be interpreted flexibly. 

The RADIANCE lighting simulation package in IES-VE, has been used to perform the 

daylight simulations. The windows analysed are shown in Figures 5, 6, 7 & 8.  

The results of the VSC for the windows and glazed doors are shown in Table 3. The results 

indicate that all neighboring windows are maintaining VSC above 27% and all reductions are 

considered Negligible.   

 

Table 2: Magnitude of change for Vertical Sky Component (VSC) Results 

VSC Values Ratio of Impact Magnitude of change 

VSC ≥27% ≥0.8 Negligible 
VSC ≥ 27% < 0.8 Negligible 
VSC < 27% > 0.8 Negligible 
VSC < 27% 0.7 – 0.8 Low 
VSC < 27% 0.6 – 0.7 Medium 
VSC < 27% < 0.6 High 
 

 

Table 3: VSC Results 

Reference Window Elevation Existing 
VSC (%) 

Proposed 
VSC (%) 

Proposed/Existing 

20 North Avenue GD1 N 33.08 32.6 0.99 

  W1 N 32.65 32.54 0.99 

  W2 N 39.67 38.6 0.97 

  W3 N 39.77 39.15 0.98 

  W4 N 39.63 39.34 0.99 

  W5 N 39.66 39.56 1.00 

  W6 E 36.51 29.76 0.82 

  W7 E 36.86 28.87 0.78 

  W8 E 34.69 29.78 0.86 

  GD2 E 34.42 29.8 0.87 

16 North Avenue GD1 N 32.39 32.19 0.99 

  W1 N 35.24 34.32 0.97 

  W2 N 39.59 38.72 0.98 

  W3 N 39.32 38.63 0.98 

  W5 W 35.1 30.67 0.87 

  W6 W 32.14 27.39 0.85 

  W7 W 32.74 27.15 0.83 

  GD2 W 24.47 20.84 0.85 

 

Page 37



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

12 
 

AVERAGE DAYLIGHT FACTOR (ADF) 

The BRE document defines ADL as: The ratio of total daylight flux incident on the working 

plane to the area of the working plane, expressed as a percentage of the outdoor 

illuminance on a horizontal plane due to an unobstructed CIE standard overcast sky. 

In housing BS 8206-2 gives minimum values of ADF of 2% for kitchens, 1.5% for living 

rooms and 1% for bedrooms 

The results of the ADF for the tested rooms are shown in Table 4 below. Indicating that the 

ADF did not suffer from any reduction. 

 

Table 4: ADF Results 

Reference Room Window/Orientation Existing 
ADF 

Proposed 
ADF 

20 North Avenue Room 1  GD1, W1/N + W6-8, GD2/E + RL1 6.5 6.1 

  Room 2 W2/N 2.1 2.1 

  Room 3 W3/N 1.5 1.5 

  Room 4 W4,5/N 3.9 3.8 

16 North Avenue Room 1 W1, GD1/N, W5-7, GD2, RL1-2/W 4.9 4.6 

  Room 2 W2/N 4.6 4.6 

  Room 3 W3/N 1.4 1.4 

 

ANNUAL PROBABLE SUNLIGHT HOURS (APSH) 

APSH is the total number of hours in the year that the sun is expected to shine on the centre 

of each window, allowing for average levels of cloudiness for the location in question. This 

test is usually used to test façade within 90 degrees of due south. 

The BRE Handbook notes that:  

 “…a south facing window will, in general, receive most sunlight, while a north facing one will 

receive it only on a handful of occasions. East and west facing windows will receive sunlight 

only at certain times of day”.  

For existing residential buildings, the BRE Handbook suggests that: “all main living rooms of 

dwellings… should be checked if they have a window facing within 90° of due south. 

Kitchens and bedrooms are less important, although care should be taken not to block too 

much sun”. 

The BRE guide explains that sunlight availability may be adversely affected if the centre of 

the window: 

Page 38



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

13 
 

 Receives less than 25% of annual probable sunlight hours, or less than 5% of annual 

probable sunlight hours between 21st of September and 21st March and; 

 Receives less than 0.8 times its former sunlight hours during either period and; 

 Has a reduction in sunlight received over the whole year greater than 4% of annual 

probable sunlight hours. 

The results of the APSH (Table 5), are showing that the new development does not affect 

the APSH of the windows. The results include tested facades that are not within 90 degrees 

of due south, although it is not required. For the windows of those facades there is only 

minor reduction in the APSH, and the facades are not affected from the proposed scheme. 

 

APSH Values Ratio of Impact Absolute reduction 
in APSH 

Magnitude of 
change 

APSH ≥25% > 0.8 ≤ 4% Negligible 
APSH ≥25% > 0.8 > 4% Negligible 
APSH ≥25% < 0.8 > 4% Negligible 
APSH <25% > 0.8 ≤ 4% Negligible 
APSH <25% > 0.7 > 4% Low 
APSH <25% 0.6-0.7 > 4% Medium 
APSH <25% < 0.6 > 4% High 
 

Table 5: APSH Results 

 

Reference Openin
g/Orie
ntation 

Existing Average Probable Sunlight 
Hours 

Proposed  Average Probable 
Sunlight Hours 

Ratio of 
impact/Magnit
ude of change 

Summer       Winter       Average Summer   Winter   Average  

20 North 
Avenue 

W6/E 19.23 19.68 38.88 19.23 16.65 38.88 1.00/Negligible 

  W7/E 30.13 15.97 46.1 22.04 12.26 34.29 0.74/Negligible 

  W8/E 30.05 9.28 39.33 27.97 4.31 32.28 0.82/Negligible 

  GD2/E 28.86 11.36 40.22 27.49 5.27 32.76 0.81/Negligible 

16 North 
Avenue 

W5/W 22.03 3.48 25.52 14.98 2.93 17.91 0.71/Low 

   W6/W 18 0.56 18.55 13.68 0.56 14.24 0.77/Low 

   W7/W 19.17 8.83 28.01 17.8 8.83 26.64 0.95/Negligible 

  GD2/W 4.33 0 4.33 1.88 0 1.88 0.43/Medium 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



18 North Avenue, Daylight & Shading analysis                     November 2018      Month, Year 
 

14 
 

NO SKY LINE 

The No sky line is the outline on the working plane of the area from which no sky can be 

seen. This is to determine the light distribution in a room. The IES-ve calculation method is 

to define the sky view factor, which is the factor from the surface to the sky, this is the ratio 

of the diffuse sky radiation received by the surface to that which would be received by the 

same surface if it were completely exposed to the sky (The theory assumes that the diffuse 

sky radiation is isotropic). 

The percentage area of no sky view is shown for each room in Table 7 below. That is based 

on the IES results, as shown in Appendix A. 

The results indicate the rooms have high sky view percentage and will maintain it on the 

working plane level. 

Table 6: Sky View Area Results 

 

Reference Room Elevation Existing sky 
view area 
(Working Plane) 

Proposed sky 
view area 
(Working Plane) 

20 North Avenue Room 1 North-East 100% 100% 

  Room 2 North 100% 100% 

  Room 3 North 100% 100% 

  Room 4 North 100% 100% 

16 North Avenue Room 1 North-West 100% 100% 

  Room 2 North 100% 100% 

  Room 3 North 100% 100% 

 

 

CONCLUSION 

This report is presenting the results of the detailed daylight and sunlight analysis on the 

potential changes to light amenity to the neighboring properties of the 18 North Avenue 

proposed project.    

Based on the site layout and the proposed drawings, it is clearly shown that the existing 

buildings surrounding the site will retain access to daylight and sunlight. 

Changes to the vertical sky component were considered negligible. Daylight factor results 

are showing that the rooms will maintain their previous daylight factor with negligible 

changes. Moreover the Sky Line is not affected for all rooms for existing and proposed 

conditions. The Average Probable Sunlight Hours APSH also did not show any major 

reductions.  

The proposed development does not cause loss of daylight and sunlight to any of the 

neighboring buildings. 

Page 40



 

 

 

ERS CONSULTANTS LTD 
27-31 High Street 
Kidlington 
OX5 2DH 
E-mail: info@erscltd.co.uk 
Website: www.erscltd.co.uk 

 
To: Mr. Andy Heron 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
OX14 4SB 
 
 
Date: 14 December 2018 
 
Dear Sirs, 

 
18 North Avenue, Abingdon, OX14 1QN  
 
Please find below the responses to the comments in regards to the “Daylight, Sunlight and 
Shading Analysis” of 18 North Avenue, Abingdon, OX14 1QN.  
 
 
1. Omission of a window at no.16 (Dining room window of 16 North Avenue missed in Figs 
7&8,p9 & in all assessments). 

This window is not included in the approved elevation (approved Jan 2009) that was acquired from 
the council planning portal. We can include it in the assessment if dimensions and current 
photographic evidence are provided.  

2. Mis-representation of others (stair window at no. 20, Fig 6 p8). 

Stair window of no.20 was modelled according to the drawing in the council planning portal (approved 
Jan 2009). This was done as good practise, since the the BRE document; ‘Site Layout Planning for 
Daylight and Sunlight’ only allows Bedroom and Lounge/Kitchen areas to assessed. This is a window 
to a circulation area, therefore analysis is not required. 

3. Guesstimates have been made in relation to window and room sizes, therefore not basing 
the assessment on accurate data.  

The windows of the assessment were based on provided photographs and the planning documents of 
the neighbouring properties. Those were provided from the architect and taken from the council’s 
planning portal. Therefore, all dimensions and implemented opening sizes were based on official and 
council-approved documentation. 

4. It claims ‘negligible impact’ where most windows have some impact & others are not 
included 

 All windows included in the planning portal documents and the photographic evidence we received, 
were modelled and included in the analysis. According to the corresponding tables in the report, all 
windows, even those which experience certain reduction, it is within acceptable limits. According to 
the BRE criteria, this reduction is considered “Negligible”. 

5. Some of the figures appear incorrect & therefore misleading 

Page 41



 

 

 

There were 2 typing errors, that occurred due to the large volume of numerical data input into the 
report. The Existing VSC is 32.65 for the window W1 20 North Avenue. The same applies to W7/W of 
16 North Avenue, where the existing APSH is now amended to the correct 28.01. This demonstrates 
that the reduction is negligible between the existing and proposed situation. 

6. Access to adjacent properties was offered via the LPA but not utilised, therefore, a less 
accurate survey was completed.  

The assessment was completed in detail. It was based on official and accurate information and most 
recent photographic documents. In regards to the layout of the properties, certain logical and 
educated assumptions were made. This is common practise on this type of assessment as it is not 
possible or feasible to survey all the neighbouring properties. Nevertheless, the modelled layout 
perimeter is the same and assumptions were made only regarding the internal layout. The results of 
ADF in page 12 of the report, indicate that the daylight availability in those spaces will remain 
unchanged, despite the internal layout assumptions. Additionally, the individual window assessment, 
VSC, indicates that the change is negligible. 

7. 16 North Avenue – Dining Room window omitted from ERS Consultants Ltd – Daylight, 
Sunlight & Shading Analysis, P9 and all other result tables. 

This window is not included in the approved elevation (approved Jan 2009) that was acquired in the 
council planning portal. We can include it in the assessment if dimensions, location, drawings and 
current photographic evidence are provided. 

P11, Table 3 – Vertical Sky Component (VSC Results)  
 

8. Shows 20 North Avenue W1 with an increased Proposed VSC from 32.38 to 32.54.  

This was a typing error due to the large numerical data that are input in the report. The correct 
percentage is 32.65 (as existing) and 32.54 (proposed). Please see updated report version 2. 

 

9. Shows 20 North Avenue W7 with Low Impact on VSC at 0.78.  

This window is “negligible” impact. Please refer to table 2, pg.11. line 2.  VSC>27% and Ratio of 
impact <0.8 results in a magnitude of change “Negligible”. 

 

10. Shows 16 North Avenue GD2 with existing VSC of 24.47 and proposed VSC of 20.84 both 
BELOW the acceptable level of 27%. 

 This window is “negligible” impact. Please refer to table 2, pg.11. line 3.  VSC<27% and Ratio of 
impact >0.8 results in a magnitude of change “Negligible”. 

 
P12 – Table 4 Average Daylight Factor (ADF) Results  
 

12. Table shows reductions in ADF and yet statement is made that ‘ADF did not suffer any 
reduction’, this is misleading.  

Results indicate that all tested rooms maintain very high ADF, way above the recommended BRE 
requirements. Additionally, the ration of impact on the rooms with minor reduction is way above 0.8 
which an acceptable threshold.  

 

12. ‘Room 1’ results for both 16 & 20 North Ave are misleading as the stated windows actually 
belong to 3 x rooms for each property.  

The assessment was based on official and accurate information and most recent photographic 
documents. In regards to the layout of the properties, certain logical and educated assumptions were 
made. This is common practise on this type of assessment as it is not possible or feasible to survey 
all the neighbouring properties. Nevertheless, the modelled layout perimeter is the same and 
assumptions were made only regarding the internal layout. The results of ADF in page 12 of the 
report, indicate that the daylight availability in those spaces will remain unchanged, despite the 
internal layout assumptions. 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

P13 – Table 5 Average Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH) Results  
 

13.Table is not showing ratio of impact & magnitude of change – see Ratio of Impact penned 
on, this shows low impact on 3 x windows (W7 at 20 North Ave & W5 & W6 at 16 North Ave) 
with a high impact on 1 window (GD2 at 16 North Ave) .  

Please see report version 2 for Ratio of impact and Magnitude of change. W7 at 20 North avenue is 
“Negligible”. W5 and W6 at 16 North Avenue are Low impact. Therefore, there is minimal change. 
Additionally ADF and VSC showed excellent results and negligible change. That ensures good 
daylight levels in the room.  

 

GD2 at 16 North avenue shows some reduction. However, the absolute reduction is not >4%. 
Therefore, it does not meet all the criteria to be considered heavily affected. It could be considered 
medium affected in relation to the window itself. However, in relation to the room it would be 
considered as low impact as the ADF and VSC indicate no change and excellent daylight availability. 

 

14. All windows show a reduction in APSH apart from W7 at 16 North Avenue which will 
receive more sunlight?!  

Apologies. This was a typing error, that occurred due to the large volume of numerical data input into 
the report.  For W7/W of 16 North Avenue, the existing APSH is now amended to the correct 28.01. 
This demonstrates that the reduction is negligible between the existing and proposed situation. 

 

15. There are 2 inaccuracies (possibly typos?) on this table, which puts all data in doubt  

W6/E of 20 North Avenue is not a typo, The resulting average is exactly the same because the 
window is not affected by the proposed development. 

 

16. The average APSH figures appear to be Summer & Winter hours added together – is this 
correct?  
Your assumption is incorrect. The average is automatically calculated result of the numerical data is 
produced directly from the approved software IES-ve. This is a complicated calculation that takes into 
account daily results of Sunlight hours in order to produce the averages. 

 
Kind Regards, 
 

 
 
Halla Huws 
Head of Sustainability 
BREEAM Assessor / Accredited Professional Sustainability Champion (BRE) 
ERS Consultants Ltd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 44



18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Proposed Elevations

1:100 @ A2
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies must be reported immediately.

PA-05

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

East Elevation 
1:100 

FACING BRICKWORK

RENDER

SLATE ROOF TILES

1

2

3

UPVC FRAMED WINDOWS4

5

OBSCURED WINDOWS6

North Elevation 
1:100 

West Elevation 
1:100 

TIMBER FENCE7

0 5m

PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS

6 6

3 241 427 71

3 44 13 77

3 24 71 2 5 37

30.08.18

32 47 1253 7

South Elevation 
1:100 

P
age 45



18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Proposed Street Elevation

1:200 @ A3
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies must be reported immediately.

PA-06

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

16.10.17

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

Proposed Street Elevation 
1:200 

0 10m

Application Site No. 18No. 22 No. 20 No. 16 No. 14 No. 12 No. 10

P
age 46



2

4

12

SOUTH AVENUE

23

5

2

11

23

ED
EN

 C
R

O
FT

8

5

NORTH AVENUE

13

1

22

NORTHFIELD ROAD

22

16

W
ES

T 
AV

EN
U

E
15

10

28

21

1

24

12

13

21

N

18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

LOCATION PLAN

1:1250 @ A3
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate  and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies  must be reported immediately.

PA-01

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

30.08.18

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

0 50m

P
age 47



E
 D

 E
 N

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 O

 F
 TREAR GARDEN

PARKING
AREA

GREEN
HOUSE

OUT
BUILDING

EXISTING
DWELLING

DROP KERB

DRIVEWAY

 DROP KERBDROP KERB

DROP KERBDROP KERBDROP KERBDROP KERB

TIMBER FENCE
h 1.8m

TIMBER FENCE
h 1.8m

FOOTPATH

FOOTPATH

BRICK WALL
h 1m

HEDGE
h 1.8m

HEDGE
h 1.8m

22

N  O  R  T  H        A  V  E  N  U  E

13

10
20 18 121416

15171921

1

3

24

DROP KERBDROP KERBDROP KERB

0 10m

18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Existing Block Plan

1:200 @ A2
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate  and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies  must be reported immediately.

PA-02

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

30.08.18

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

N

daterev

09.01.19

note

PL1 No16 Roof Plan Amended

P
age 48



0 10m

18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Proposed Block Plans

1:200 @ A2
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate  and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies  must be reported immediately.

PA-03

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

N

E
 D

 E
 N

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 O

 F
 T

EXISTING
DROP KERB  DROP KERBDROP KERB

DROP KERBDROP KERBDROP KERBDROP KERB

TIMBER FENCE
h 1.8m

FOOTPATH

FOOTPATH

BRICK WALL
h 1m

HEDGE
h 1.8m

HEDGE
h 1.8m

BIKES

EXISTING 2m
BOUNDARY HEDGE

EXISTING 1.8m 
BOUNDARY FENCE

NEW 1.2m 
BOUNDARY 
FENCE

BIKES

GRASSGRASS

NEW 1.8m
TIMBER FENCE

PARKING AREA
( 3 CARS )

PARKING AREA
( 3 CARS )

PATIO PATIO

22

N  O  R  T  H        A  V  E  N  U  E

13

10
20 18 121416

15171921

1

3

24

MAXIMUM EXTENT OF ESTABLISHED REAR 
BUILDING LINE OBSERVED BY PROPOSAL

MAXIMUM EXTENT OF ESTABLISHED FRONT 
BUILDING LINE OBSERVED BY PROPOSAL

GROUND FLOOR
PATIO DOORS

DROP KERBDROP KERB NEW
DROP KERB

40
.0

0°

8325
8300

11005
11000

10976
11000

8300
8300

8700
8700

71
68

72
00

3700

3994
4000

2603
2600

6242
6250

40.00°

5030
5200

30.08.18

18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate  and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies  must be reported immediately.

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

daterev

09.10.18

date

PL1 Parking Arrangement Amended
09.01.19PL2 No16 Roof Plan Amended

P
age 49



18 North Avenue
Abingdon-on-Thames
OX14 1QN

Client

Drawing Title

Proposed Floor Plans

1:100 @ A2
Do not scale - Use figured dimensions only. All 
dimensions are approximate  and are to be 
checked on site prior to construction. 
Discrepancies  must be reported immediately.

PA-04

PAULSOUTHOUSEARCHITECTS
The Studio
High Street Beckley  
Oxford   OX3 9UU

Telephone: 01865 686108
Mobile: 07939 005458

studio@paulsouthouse.co.uk

Project Title

dwg

Willow Spring Homes Ltd

2
A3-01

F/F

OVEN
+

MW

DWDW

F/F

OVEN
+

MW

KITCHEN

FAMILY ROOM

CUP

DINING

W/C

LIVING ROOM

BOOT ROOM

ENTRANCE

KITCHEN

FAMILY ROOM

CUP

DINING

W/C

LIVING ROOM

BOOT ROOM

ENTRANCE

2500

50
00

800

2500

50
00

2500

800

NEW DROP KERB EXISTING DROP KERB

2

BIN
STORE

EXISTING 2m
BOUNDARY HEDGE

EXISTING 1.8m 
BOUNDARY FENCE

VISIBILITY SPLAY

2.5 m 2.5 m

2m
PATIO

NEW 1.2m
BOUNDARY

FENCE

1

NEW 0.6m 
BRICK WALL

1.8 m
TIMBER
FENCE

1.8 m 
TIMBER 
FENCE

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

NEW 1.8m
TIMBER FENCE

N O R T H       A V E N U E

1620

BIN
STORE

PATIO

SHED FOR
BIKES

SHED FOR
BIKES

NEW 1.8m
TIMBER FENCE

VISIBILITY SPLAY

2.5 m 2.5 m

2m

21

N O R T H      A V E N U E

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

ENSUITE

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

ENSUITE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 3

BATHROOM

Ground Floor & Site Plan
1:100 

First Floor Plan
1:100 

0 5m

Roof Plan
1:100 

 Roof Space Plan
1:100 

N

BEDROOM 4ENSUITEBEDROOM 4 ENSUITE

PVPV

daterev

09.10.18

note

PL1 Parking Arrangement Amended

09.10.18PL2 Pedestrian Access Added

P
age 50



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V3102/CM
APPLICATION TYPE COUNTY MATTERS
SITE North of the A420 Botley Road to south of 

the A423 ring road
PROPOSAL A flood alleviation scheme to reduce flood 

risk in Oxford.(Further Environmental 
Information and Amendments to Planning 
Application P18/V1179/CM).

PARISH NORTH HINKSEY
WARD MEMBER(S) Debby Hallett

Emily Smith
Edward Blagrove
Bob Johnston

APPLICANT Environment Agency
CASE OFFICER Adrian Butler

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the following comments are made to Oxfordshire 
County Council:

1. This council has no objection in principle to this proposal.

2. With regard to culvert work beneath the A423 this council is concerned 
that 24 hour working could result in unreasonable noise disturbance for 
local residents. The Environment Agency should be asked to provide 
further justification demonstrating that there will be no detrimental 
impact to the living conditions of local residents.

3. Should the County Council be minded to approve the application at least 
the following planning conditions should be imposed to require:

i. Implementation of the landscaping and it’s maintenance
ii. Restrict working to 07:30-18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00-13:00 

on a Saturday; and no work to take place on Sundays or Public 
Holiday.

iii. Require a Construction Environmental Management Plan to be 
agreed

iv. Require a Construction Traffic Management Plan to be agreed
v. The developer to notify the County Council of the presence of any 

unsuspected contamination encountered during the development. 
In the event of any contamination to the land and/or water being 
encountered, no development shall continue until a programme of 
investigation and/or remedial works to include methods of 
monitoring and certification of such works undertaken has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.

Page 51

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1179/CM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

vi. Revised bridge designs be sought for the Willow Walk and Devil’s 
Backbone bridges. The bridges should have a maximum width of 
5.5m and the finished surface treatments should be first approved 
by Oxfordshire County Council.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This report relates to an application submitted to Oxfordshire County Council 

which will be the determining authority. This council is a consultee. 

1.2 In August 2018 this council expressed comments on the flood alleviation 
scheme and these were submitted as a consultation response to the County 
Council. These comments are repeated below at section 5 of this report. 
Since then the County Council has asked the applicant to address a number 
of matters including the comments expressed by this council. This report 
concentrates on assessing the applicant’s response to the matters raised by 
this council in August 2018.

1.3 The applicant has responded by providing more information including an 
addendum to its Environmental Statement which assesses the effects of the 
proposal, further visualisations, revised arboriculture and landscaping plans, 
additional biodiversity information including Biodiversity Calculations for 
losses and gains, and seeking to explain and justify bridge designs

1.4 The County Council is now seeking further observations on the revisions and 
additional information submitted. 

1.5 The additional information received and changes made are summarised by 
the County Council as:

New Documents:
 Environmental Statement Addendum
 Environmental Statement Addendum, Version 2, November 2018 with 

appendices.
 A revised Planning Statement, Version 4 - Updated November 2018.
 A revised Flood Risk Assessment, Version 6 – October 2018 and 

Appendix A. (The other appendices to the FRA have not changed).
 A Landscape and Habitat Creation Delivery and Management Plan. 

This replaces the Landscape and Habitat Management Plan previously 
submitted.

 Revised Planting Plans. These replace the previously submitted 
Planting Plans.

Application Amendments:
 A minor change in the red line planning application boundary at South 

Hinksey and Egrove Park (see Figure 1.1 of the ES addendum)
 Additional areas of planting e.g. at Seacourt Nature Park
 Additional areas of rip rap to provide scour protection to the new 

channel

Page 52



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

 Construction of a new low flow weir at Hinksey Stream – operates 
during very low conditions to help maintain water levels in the Hinksey 
Railway fishing ponds

 Changes to proposed temporary and permanent diversions of Public 
Rights of Way (PRoW)

 Removal of proposed flood gate at Henry Road as a further review of 
ground levels has identified that they are no longer required for flood 
defence.

 Requirement for 24hour working during the installation of culverts 
under the A423.

1.6 The site location plan is attached as Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS 
ON CURRENT SUBMISSION

2.1 Below is a summary of the responses received to the current submission is 
below.  A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

Conservation officer
Comments

 Key impacts on the character of the North Hinksey 
Conservation Area and its setting include the width of 
Willow Walk Bridge being 7.4 metres wide. This is a vast 
difference on existing and would impact adversely on the 
distinctive local character and appearance of the area. 
There is scope to reduce this width to replicating the 
existing and for shared use of the path or local closure if 
specific access were required by a vehicle.

 No time layering of views has been provided. However, 
the historic views are distant ones from Raleigh Park and 
more so from Boars Hill

 It would be useful to condition a Historic Routes Study 
with Impact Assessment/Mitigation to fully understand the 
impacts on the network of historic routes which criss-
cross the development area and adequately preserve 
them and for dissemination to the public for appreciation.

Countryside officer
No comments received to date

Landscape officer
No comments received to date

Forestry Officer
No comments received to date

Environmental protection team (noise)
Concern expressed about 24 hours working as follows:

Page 53

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

 The Environment Statement Addendum report indicates 
that there is now a requirement for localised 24 hour 
working 7 days a week to install the culverts under A423 
and that this could be for a period of up to 4 months. This 
could have potential noise impacts on local residents from 
24 hours working in this location; should the applicant 
want to undertake 24 hours working in this location they 
should provide further justification demonstrating that 
there will be no detrimental impact to the amenity of local 
residents.

 To ensure that the development does not have a 
detrimental impact to the amenity of nearby residents by 
reason of undue disturbance I would recommend that the 
hours of construction and demolition works is restricted to 
07:30-18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00-13:00 on a 
Saturday; and no work to take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays

Air Quality
No objection

Contaminated Land
No objection. Comments remain as previous as follows:

 A condition should be imposed requiring the developer to 
confirm in writing to the Local Planning Authority the 
presence of any unsuspected contamination encountered 
during the development. In the event of any 
contamination to the land and/or water being 
encountered, no development shall continue until a 
programme of investigation and/or remedial works to 
include methods of monitoring and certification of such 
works undertaken has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P18/V1179/CM - Comments (details are in section 5 below) (07/08/2018)

A flood alleviation scheme to reduce flood risk in Oxford.

3.2 P17/V1752/PEM - Other Outcome (25/07/2017)
Request for pre-planning application advice by the Environment Agency for 
the Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme - Land Raising at Land South of Hinksey 
Heights

3.3 P17/V1751/PEM - Other Outcome (21/07/2017)
Request for pre-planning application advice by the Environment Agency for 
the Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme at Land from North of Botley Road to 
New Hinksey in the parishes of North Hinksey, South Hinksey and 
Kennington.

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)
4.1 The application is supported by an Environmental Impact Assessment which 

covers at least the following topics:
 Biodiversity
 Heritage
 Landscape and visual
 Traffic and transport
 Recreation and public access
 Air quality
 Noise and vibration

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 On 1 August 2018 planning committee resolved the following:

1. “This council has no objection in principle

2. This council is concerned the proposals may have a negative impact on 
biodiversity and could have an adverse impact on Egrove Park 
Meadow Local Wildlife Site (LWS). The County Council should seek 
additional information to:

 clearly demonstrate that the overall result of the proposals can deliver 
a net gain for biodiversity. To do this the Environment Agency should 
use a Biodiversity Impact Calculator following the methodology 
developed by Defra as part of the Biodiversity Offsetting pilot scheme

 information should be provided for the area around Egrove Park 
Meadow LWS so that the conclusions in the Environmental Statement 
(ES) can be checked and verified

3. A revised Heritage Impact Assessment should be submitted to assess:
 The age and time layering of views. The heritage value of trees in the 

views needs to be clearly ascertained and a deeper understanding of 
views provided such that a reasoned assessment and proposal 
methodology can be followed. This would best be provided in a 
sequence of historic map overlays with views clearly marked and which 
should cover the JMW Turner views and those once perceived by John 
Ruskin and his followers in North Hinksey

 Explain how the case for tree removal and re-planting and the position 
of new planting is arrived at with regard to the proposed planting of 
9.7ha of new woodland to replace up to 398 individual trees or groups 
of trees

 Research on the network of routes criss-crossing the proposal site 
should be carried out such that their significance nationally, regionally 
and locally can be better understood and more effective proposals 
made for their retention, enhancement and appreciation

4. The Landscape and Visual Assessment reassesses the impact of the 
proposed scheme on North Hinksey Village and the area of land 

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

between Botley Road and Willow Walk and also the proposed 
mitigation planting.

5. The proposed planting is revisited so it better reflects the local 
landscape character and screens existing development particularly that 
on Botley Road.

6. The design of the Willow Walk and Devils Backbone are revisited to 
reduce their engineered appearance.

7. Should the County Council be minded to approve the application at 
least the following planning conditions should be imposed to require:

 A detailed landscaping scheme, its implementation, and maintenance
 Alternative bridge designs and materials to be submitted and agreed 

for Willow Walk and the Devil’s Backbone crossings
 Restrict working to 07:30-18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00-13:00 on 

a Saturday; and no work to take place on Sundays or Public Holidays
 Require a Construction Environmental Management Plan to be agreed
 Require a Construction Traffic Management Plan to be agreed
 The developer to notify the County Council of the presence of any 

unsuspected contamination encountered during the development. In 
the event of any contamination to the land and/or water being 
encountered, no development shall continue until a programme of 
investigation and/or remedial works to include methods of monitoring 
and certification of such works undertaken has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority”.

5.2 The main issues are how the applicant’s response addresses this council’s 
concerns expressed in items 2 – 6 above. The main headings have therefore, 
been summarised as:

 Biodiversity (item 2 above);
 Historic Environment (item 3 above);
 Landscape and Visual Impact and Landscaping (items 4 and 5 above); 
 Bridge Design (item 6 above);
 Noise from 24 hours working

Biodiversity
5.3 Core Policy 46 of the Local Plan Part 1 and draft policy GS2 of the North 

Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan (NHNP) expect development proposals to 
achieve a net gain in biodiversity if possible but as a minimum to avoid a net 
loss. It is therefore reasonable to conclude that if the overall scheme can 
achieve a net gain then the losses at individual sites and habitats are 
acceptable as the scheme will deliver greater biodiversity benefits in the long 
run. 

5.4 The site area has been revised to exclude the majority of the Egrove Park 
Meadow Local Wildlife Site. Only part of its eastern extremity is now in the 
application site. 

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

5.5 The applicant has assessed the impacts for the Egrove Park Meadow Local 
Wildlife Site and considers the impacts to be negligible. There would be no 
change to the management of this site. The impacts are considered by the 
applicant to be the potential direct impacts of public use should the land be 
acquired for public use. Presently the site is accessible to those working at the 
Egrove Business Park.  However, as the land is not adjacent to a public road 
the applicant suggests impacts from any wider public use will be negligible 
with dog walkers likely to prefer use of the easterly field which is larger and 
where the grass can be kept shorter during the growing season. 

5.6 The applicant has now used a Biodiversity Calculator to calculate the likely 
gains or losses of habitats. This shows losses in woodland and scrub, tall 
herb and ferns. There are gains in grassland and marsh, swamp and open 
water. Overall the Biodiversity Calculator indicates there is a gain in 
biodiversity units. The proposals would be beneficial for biodiversity in the 
long term and the scheme therefore, complies with core policy 46 of the Local 
Plan 2031 Part 1 and emerging policy GS2 of the draft NHNP.

Historic Environment
5.7 The applicant explains that it has assessed the age and time layering of views 

and the heritage value of trees in the views in chapters 7 and 10 of its 
Environmental Statement and in its Heritage Statement. The assessment is in 
writing rather than mapped. In addition, planting is addressed through revised 
arboricultural reports and planting plans. The applicant’s response also 
advises that it is not removing any of the existing routes in the area and that 
as part of the archaeological investigations additional buried east-west 
causeways were also identified. There is the potential for further 
information/evidence on existing and buried routes to be gathered through the 
proposed archaeological mitigation.

5.8 The application includes visualisations showing views from higher ground 
above North Hinksey and South Hinksey, Raleigh Park, and the Boars Hill 
and Hinksey Hill interchange View Cones (saved policy NE8 of the Local Plan 
2011). Revised arboricultural surveys and planting plans show trees retained 
and to be planted. These show that existing commercial buildings at the edge 
of the site will remain screened and that views of Oxford’s spires will not be 
materially harmed.

5.9 Archaeological evaluation can assess the network of routes criss-crossing the 
proposal site should be carried out such that their significance nationally, 
regionally and locally can be better understood and more effective proposals 
made for their retention, enhancement and appreciation. 

5.10 The proposal is considered compliant with core policy 39 of the Local Plan 
2031 Part 1 and emerging policy GS3 of the NHNP.  

Landscape and Visual Impact and Landscaping
5.11 The applicant has provided two new visualisations from viewpoints agreed 

with this council’s landscape officer to allow further assessment of potential 

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

impacts for North Hinksey village plus the area between Botley Road and 
Willow Walk.

5.12 Views from North Hinksey Lane are currently over the green belt to 
commercial buildings at Botley Road with foreground vegetation filtering the 
views. The applicant explains “The removal of trees at the interface of the 
allotment site and Hinksey Meadow and from the northern bank of Seacourt 
Stream will open views from this location. Partial views of the second stage 
channel and modified Jubilee Scrape (lowered banks and extended) will be 
possible close to the allotment site, evident as a shallow depression within the 
meadow”. New planting including new woodland planting will screen the lower 
elements of the commercial buildings retaining the green backdrop to the 
views which are filtered through foreground vegetation. In the long term with 
the new planting being established the landscape and visual impacts are 
acceptable.

5.13 Previously the council was concerned that tree loss associated with the 
scheme would result in commercial buildings on Botley Road becoming 
exposed in views thereby detracting from the character and appearance of the 
area. A visualisation has been provided to show current and potential future 
views towards Botley. Revised planting is proposed. This includes retention of 
existing trees towards the boundaries of the site with Botley Road buildings 
and additional woodland planting. There is some loss of existing trees which 
in the short term will expose views of commercial buildings, residential 
development, and Seacourt tower in views across Hinksey Meadow. There 
will be short term visual harm. Once new planting is established the visual 
harm is significantly reduced and the impact is acceptable in the long term.

5.14 In revising the landscaping scheme reference to ash and sycamore trees has 
been removed. Willow, alder, hazel and small leaved lime remain as proposed 
trees.  

5.15 Overall, the scheme provides an opportunity for landscape benefits and can 
be made core policies 37, 38 and 44 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved 
policies DC6 and NE8 and emerging policy GS3 of the NHNP complaint.

Bridge Design
5.16 Previously this council expressed concern at the design of the Willow Walk 

and Devils Backbone bridges requesting that the designs are revisited to 
reduce their engineered appearance.

5.17 There is no obvious change to their design. They remain 6.7m wide between 
the parapets (7.4m wide overall), with a hard surface. The parapets comprise 
CorTen steel uprights and hardwood handrails. The Willow Walk bridge plan 
is attached as Appendix 2 to the report. The plan will be displayed at the 
meeting. 

5.18 The applicant explains that the bridges are designed to highway authority 
standards and so that they can be adopted. It also explains the Willow Walk 
bridge will remain the same as the existing stone bridge. As pointed out above 

Page 58



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

the new bridge will be 6.7m wide between parapets whereas the existing 
stone bridge (which is retained), is some 5.5m wide between its parapets.

5.19 The bridges are designed to allow use by pedestrians, cyclists and horse 
riders and also to allow maintenance vehicle use which will include excavators 
used to clear channels. The Devil’s backbone bridge also needs to 
accommodate National Grid and farm vehicles. Therefore, parapets at 1.4m 
high are needed. Footways across the bridges are to be laid with setts. 

5.20 The parapet designs and use of setts for footways is reasonable. The length 
of the bridges is acceptable being required to span the channel to be formed. 
The width of the bridges is a concern. The bridges are almost as wide as a 
road with pavements either side. SUSTRANS guidance suggests a 5.5m wide 
path is sufficient to accommodate horse riders, cyclists and pedestrians whilst 
allowing sufficient passing space. This width should also be sufficient to 
accommodate vehicles. Given the irregular use by vehicles there should be 
limited conflict with other uses with neither being severely inconvenienced 
whilst waiting for a user to cross the bridges. 5.5m would also reflect the width 
of the existing stone bridge.

5.21 In this instance a planning condition could seek revised designs for the Willow 
Walk and Devil’s Backbone bridges with their widths being no greater than 
5.5m (excluding parapets), and the surface treatments to respond to the rural 
character of the area. 

Noise
5.22 To install culverts beneath the A423, 24 hour working is proposed. This work 

could take four months to complete. Working at night could result in 
disturbance to local residents. The nearest dwellings appear to be some 
210m south at Kennington and approximately 240m east at Red Bridge 
Hollow. Back ground noise levels in these locations may already be high due 
to the traffic using the A423 and A34 plus trains using the nearby railway line. 
Nonetheless, the applicant should demonstrate that noise levels from 24 
hours working and especially overnight will not exceed background noise 
levels to such an extent that living conditions of residents would be 
unacceptably affected.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The revisions to the scheme are considered to have responded positively to 

requests made by this council except for the bridge designs. The bridges for 
Willow Walk and the Devil’s Backbone are considered to remain too wide. 
They could be narrowed to the 5.5m widths recommended by SUSTRANS 
guidance and in turn this would be consistent with the width of the stone 
bridge at the North Hinksey end of Willow Walk.

6.2 There is concern with regard to 24 hour works beneath the A423 and potential 
for impacts on the living conditions of local residents particularly at night. The 
Environment Agency should provide more detail to assure the County Council 
that background noise levels will not be unreasonably exceeded to the extent 
that local residents would be subject to increased noise. 

Page 59



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 30 January 2019

6.3 Should the County Council be minded to approve the scheme conditions 
should be imposed including those set out in this recommendation.

Guidance and planning policies in the following documents have been considered: 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031: PART 1 – CORE POLICIES 1, 7, 13, 
33, 34, 35, 37, 38, 39, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2011 – SAVED POLICIES DC5, DC6, DC9, 
DC12, DC20, HE1, HE4, HE9, HE10, HE11, NE7, NE8

DRAFT VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031 PART 2 – CORE POLICY 
13a AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES  15, 20, 22, 24, 25, 26, 27, 29, 30, 35, 
36, 37 and 38

DRAFT NORTH HINKSEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN – POLICY UT1, GS2, GS3

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015

OXFORDSHIRE MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN SEPTEMBER 2017

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK 

PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE

Case Officer – Adrian Butler
Email – adrian.butler@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel – (01235) 422600

Page 60



Appendix 1

Page 61



In-situ

concrete with

surfacing

4500

Carriageway

7400

ACO KDHB200

kerbdrain or equivalent

Provision for

future services

HDPE with

100 mm ID

1100

Verge

350

M4 precast prestressed beam

UM4 precast prestressed beam

100

1100

Verge

235-285mm thick in-situ reinforced concrete

slab including the permament formwork

2.5%

Waterproofing

1000

C

L beam

C

L beam

2.5%

2.5%2.5%

1
2

5

m
i
n

.
 
2

3
5

 
a

t
 
a

b
u

t
m

e
n

t

m
a

x
.
 
2

8
5

 
a

t
 
m

i
d

s
p

a
n

Construction

joint

350

1
2

5

v
a

r
i
e

s

2
3

5
-
2

8
5

v
a

r
i
e

s

5
0

-
1

0
0

5%

5%

58.42*

* Level measured at the center of the span

4
0

0
1

1
0

0

1

20

1 in 100 year flood event

+35% climate change

+56.92

21430

Rip Rap

300mm thick

19100

Clear span of the abutments

25

Movement joint

E.G.L

+54.00

25

Movement joint

9800

Random stone cladding below capping beam

and concrete infill to piling in-pans

Regraded/reprofiled approaches

to footbridge to a slope of 1:3.

Highway alignment to be confirmed

1

1.5

Proposed parapet

+57.12

C

L

piles

C

L

piles

1

3

1

3

1

20

1

1.5

Existing flood relief

culverts to be removed

Existing flood relief culverts to

be removed

Estimated typical

water level

Geotextile, type to be confirmed

9800

E E

Back of the wall drainage outfall

Changed the extents of Rip Rap.

Pourable free

flowing grout

150Ø uPVC

perforated pipe

ST4 mass concrete bedding

to pipe depth varies

Water proofing

to extend

300mm below

construction

joint

In-situ

deck slab

p
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
b
e
a
m

Interlocking steel sheet piles

Road surfacing

30x10 sawcut crack

inducer sealed with hot

poured rubber bituminum

500

C

L

ST2 75mm concrete blinding

Rip Rap

250-500mm thick

6N2 Backfill

Random stone

cladding

Construction joint

C20/25 RC boot

ST2 75mm concrete blinding

25/14 Channel Profile

C15/20 infill

150mm SD25 Wall Tie

2
2
5

2nd stage

concrete

150x150x40mm

plastic shims

Drainage

medium to

clause 513 of

the specification

of highway

works

Two coats of

bitumen paint

as specified in

clause 2004 of

the highway

works

specification

50mm thick claymaster

Geotextile

2
0
0

500

Existing flood relief culverts to

be removed

Existing footpath

Existing footpath

7
4
0
0

4
5
0
0

A

DD

B
B

C
C

Retaining wingwalls

A

Existing HV to be diverted

onto service ducts on the

verge

Existing flood relief

culvert to be removed

Regraded/reprofiled approaches

to bridge to a slope of 1:3.

Highway alignment to be confirmed in detailed design stage

Rip Rap 300mm

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

S
S

E
 H

V
(D

)

S
S

E
 H

V
(D

)

S
S

E
 H

V
(D

)

SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)

SSE H
V(D

)

SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)

SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)SSE HV(D)
SSE HV(D)

S
S

E
 H

V
(B

)

S
S

E
 H

V
(B

)

SSE HV(B)

SSE HV(B)

SSE HV(B)
SSE HV(B)

SSE HV(B)

S
S

E
 H

V
(B

)

SSE HV(B)

S
S

E
 H

V
(B

)

SSE HV(A)
SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A)

SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A) SSE HV(A)

S
S

E
 
H

V
(
C

)
S

S
E

 
H

V
(
C

)

S
S

E
 
H

V
(
C

)
S

S
E

 
H

V
(
C

)

S

W

(
B

)

S

W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S

W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

S
W

(
B

)

5

6

.

7

m

Track

8
0
0
0

Detail 1

Changed the extents of Rip Rap.

350 1100

2.5%

100

Construction

joint

Type of parapet system TBC

ST2 75mm

concrete blinding

1000

Random stone

cladding

Interlocking steel

sheet piles

225

25/14 Channel Profile

175mm SD25 Wall Tie

C15/20 infill

C20/25 RC boot

ST2 75mm concrete blinding

2
0

0

2
2

5

50mm thick claymaster

4
0

0
1

1
0

0

25mm movement

joint

Geotextile to

prevent wash out

Internal PVC

waterstop width

230mm Grace

Servitite or equivalent

Front random

stone cladding

surface

R

C

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey   material by Halcrow on behalf of

with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office,   Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence Number: 100026380

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Notes:

N

AREA 2

NEW ACCOMODATION BRIDGE

AT WILLOW WALK

J.WILK 21/02/17

T. SZUROWSKI 22/02/17

IMSE500177-CH2-CXB-A2B-DR-S-2210 P09

S2-FIT FOR INFORMATION

S2

PJ. MARSH 24/02/17

P04
21/04/17

FOR PRE-PLANNINGJW TS PJM

P05
08/12/17

TO CLIENT - FOR COMMENTSJW TS PJM

P06
20/02/18

FOR AIP APPROVALJW TS PJM

P07
09/03/18

FOR PLANNINGJW TS PJM

P08
20/03/18

PLANNING APPLICATIONJW TS PJM

P09
07/08/18

UPDATED FOR PLANNINGDG ZO PJM

PL-IMSE500177-CH2-CXB-A2B-DR-S-2210.dwg

ELEVATION A-A

SCALE 1:100

CROSS SECTION B-B

SCALE 1:25

PLAN VIEW

SCALE 1:250

SECTION D-D

PARAPET NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY

SCALE 1:25

SECTION C-C

SCALE 1:25

0 5 10

SCALE 1:100 (A1)

SCALE 1:200 (A3)

METRES

0 5 1510 20

SCALE 1:250 (A1)

SCALE 1:500 (A3)

METRES

0 0.5 1.51 2

SCALE 1:25 (A1)

SCALE 1:50 (A3)

METRES

1. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated. All

levels are in metres above Ordnance Datum (mAOD) Newlyn

2. The services locations shown in this drawing are only indicative

and based on information received (C2 Returns) from Service

Providers in February 2017.

3. Existing flood relief culverts to be decommissioned.

4. New Accommodation Bridge for combined use by pedestrians,

cyclists, equestrian and vehicles.

5. All timber sourced from sustainable and legal sources.

Certification by a qualified independent body provided to the

Project Manager for approval prior to installation.

6. The sizes of all the channels shown are only indicative and are

subject to change.

7. Cobbles to cover the verges of the bridge.

LEGEND

Statutory Undertakers Information

Project

Document Suitability:

Drawing No.

Checked by:

Approved by:

Drawn by:

Drawing

Revision

Date:

Date:

Date:

Apprvd

Project

Client

ByRev Chkd Date Description

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
f
i
l
e

 
p

a
t
h

 
&

 
n

a
m

e
 
:
 
C

:
\
p

w
_

w
o

r
k
d

i
r
\
l
o

n
0

0
2

\
d

g
0

5
9

8
2

6
\
d

m
s
4

7
7

9
9

\
P

L
-
I
M

S
E

5
0

0
1

7
7

-
C

H
2

-
C

X
B

-
A

2
B

-
D

R
-
S

-
2

2
1

0
.
d

w
g

 
 
L

a
y
o

u
t
:
 
L

a
y
o

u
t
1

U
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
P

l
o

t
 
D

a
t
e

 
:
 
G

l
o

w
a

c
k
i
,
 
D

a
n

i
e

l
/
K

R
V

 
:
 
 
O

c
t
 
1

1
,
 
2

0
1

8
 
 
1

1
:
5

8
:
4

4
 
a

m
 
P

l
o

t
 
S

t
y
l
e

 
T

a
b

l
e

:
 
C

:
\
P

r
o

g
r
a

m
 
F

i
l
e

s
\
A

u
t
o

C
A

D
 
2

0
0

0
i
\
P

l
o

t
 
S

t
y
l
e

s
\
c
o

l
o

u
r
 
A

3
.
c
t
b

Burderop Park

Swindon

SN4 0QD

www.ch2mhill.com

+44 (0) 1793 812 479

+44 (0) 1793 812 089

Tel: 

Fax: 

WEM LOT 3 - OXFORD FLOOD ALLEVIATION

SCHEME DETAILED DESIGN

684232

Note: shared access of the existing bollards

on the existing arch bridge would be required

Existing Watercourses

New/Modified Channel

Existing ground level

E.G.L

Brick/Stone cladding

300mm Thick Rip Rap

DETAIL 1

SCALE 1:25

SSE HV(ST)

SSE High voltage electricity cables

Underground services

PAS 128:2014 - Data Quality Level

ST

Survey Type

A Verification

B Detection

C Site Reconnaissance

D

Desktop utility records search

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL

INFORMATION

Prior to using the works information shown on this drawing the con-tactor must refer to the Designer's

design risk assessments reference IMSE500177-CH2-CXB-A2A-RA-HS-0338 and IMSE500177-CH2

-CXB-A2A-RA-HS-0339 for risk concerning  this section of the works. The principal contractor and other

contractors should note that the risks identified in this document may not be exhaustive and further

consideration may be necessary.

2. Buried and overhead services.

6. Instability of structure during demolition.

Demolition of existing culverts

Construction of new bridge

Maintenance and Operation

1. Working at height.

2. Working over/adjacent to watercourse.

5. Overhead electric lines and buried sevices.

7. Interface of construction traffic and public and other road

users.

8. Breaking out existing old tarmac walkways.

11. Unexploded ordnance (UXO).

20. Working at height.

22. Interface with other bridge works and traffic.

23. Debris clearance - possibility of encountering sharps and

hazardous waste.

Demolition

24. Instability of structure during demolition.

Update to design

Appendix 2

P
age 62



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2726/FUL
SITE The Plough Inn Little Coxwell Faringdon 

Oxon, SN7 7SR
PARISH LITTLE COXWELL
PROPOSAL Change of use of existing ground floor of 

public house from use class A4 to 
communal areas, dining room, servery 
and food storage/preparation associated 
with bed & breakfast use of site together 
with the demolition of the outbuildings 
and construction of eight letting rooms to 
the rear.

WARD MEMBER(S) Simon Howell
Elaine Ware

APPLICANT The Plough Inn, A420 Road
OFFICER Andy Heron

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is refused for the following 
refusal reason:
1. Unsustainable development

The Plough is situated in a rural area within the open countryside and the 
Western Vale Sub-Area. No evidence has been submitted to demonstrate 
that the existing C4 public house use is no longer economically viable, nor 
has it been demonstrated that all reasonable efforts have been made to 
sell or let the property as a public house on the open market at a realistic 
price. Furthermore, insufficient information has been provided to show 
that there is no reasonable likelihood of a suitable alternative facility or 
service of benefit to the local community.

The proposed change of use would result in a large development in the 
open countryside. The development would be contrary to Policy CP31 of 
the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 which will only support large developments in 
exceptional circumstances, for example to support or enhance enjoyment 
of a significant and established visitor attraction where this cannot 
reasonably be achieved from a town or village location. The proposed 
change of use would represent an unsustainable form of development 
within the open countryside that is contrary to policy CF5 of the Local 
Plan Saved Policies 2011, policy CP31 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1, 
policy DP9 of the Draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2, and paragraphs 8a, and 84 
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2018).

Page 63

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2726/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee following a call-in request 

from the local members, Councillors Simon Howell and Elaine Ware. 
Councillors Howell and Ware believe the development would bring benefit to 
the local community and bring a disused facility back into use.

1.2 The site is adjacent to the east of the A420 within the open countryside to the 
south of Little Coxwell, a small village within the western Vale sub-area. The 
site consists of a large pub that is set within a spacious plot. A site location 
plan is provided below:

1.3 The Plough has been closed since 2005. The ground floor is vacant, although 
the landlord and their family reside in two flats on the first floor.

1.4 The site area consists of 0.28 hectares. Vehicle access is via the A420 to the 
east. A large car park is situated to the south. Two wooden outbuildings are 
located to the north-east of the pub.

1.5 Planning consent is sought for the change of use of the existing ground floor of 
the public house from use class A4 to use class C1 for communal areas, a 
dining room, servery a food storage/preparation associated with a bed and 
breakfast use together with the demolition of the outbuildings to the north-east 
to construct eight letting rooms. The replacement building will measure 31.97 
metres by 6.57 metres with a height of 4.67 metres. The building will be 
constructed of black horizontal timber cladding and a brown plain tile pitched 
roof with two south facing gables. The bed and breakfast units will be 1.85 
metres higher than the existing shallow pitched outbuildings. Vehicle access 
and car parking is proposed to remain as existing.

Page 64



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

1.6 Extracts from the application plans for this current application are attached at 
Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of the responses received is set out below. Comments made can 

be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

2.2 Little Coxwell Parish 
Council

No objection.

Drainage The application form states that a connection 
to the mains sewer is proposed. I have 
reviewed Thames
Waters mapping system and their does not 
appear to be an adopted foul sewer neither 
at the site or in the
proximity. Therefore, I will require more 
information to be submitted with regards to 
the proposed discharge of
waste/foul water.

Equalities Officer (Vale) Object. There does not appear to be any 
provision made for disabled customers, 
other than accessible parking. The route 
through the pub to the B&B accommodation 
is showing steps access. I would strongly 
recommend this is revised along with
considering how one of the proposed rooms 
could be made accessible with flush access, 
accessible bathroom facilities, appropriate 
turning circles and access through the pub 
or externally if it is not possible to change 
the levels in the building.

Accessible parking must be near the 
accommodation and the entrance to the 
main building. The ground floor must also 
have an accessible
toilet.

County Council Highways 
Officer

No objection, subject to condition.

Environmental Health 
Officer (Vale)

No objection.

Neighbours No neighbouring letters of representation 
received.

Page 65

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P18/V1507/FUL - Withdrawn (28/08/2018).

Change of use of Existing Ground Floor of Public House from Use Class A4 to 
Communal Areas, Dining Room, Servery and Food Storage / Preparation 
Associated with Bed & Breakfast Use of Site Together with the Demolition of 
the Outbuildings and Construction of Eight Letting Rooms to the Rear.

3.2 P17/V1886/FUL - Withdrawn (15/09/2017).
Two Storey Extension to Provide 10 Letting Rooms.

3.3 P03/V1348 - Approved (02/10/2003).
Two storey extension to provide ten letting rooms.

3.4 P02/V1909/O - Approved (03/03/2003).
Extension to provide ten letting rooms.

3.5 P00/V0381 - Refused (18/01/2001) - Appeal dismissed (05/11/2001).
Demolition of existing sports pavilion and construction of a ten-bedroom hotel 
annexe to existing public house.

3.6 P99/V0326 - Approved (22/04/1999).
Revised application for extension to landlord’s accommodation.

3.7 P99/V0016 - Approved (11/02/1999).
Extension to landlord’s accommodation.

3.8 P97/V0913 - Refused (16/10/1997) - Appeal dismissed (10/03/1998).
Erection of a dwelling ancillary to public house.

3.9 P87/V0586 - Refused (03/09/1987).
Erection of five bedrooms with en-suite bathrooms for use ancillary to public 
house. Existing garage/pavilion to be demolished.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The application has been considered under the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The 
scale of the proposal is below relevant thresholds and the locality has no 
recognised specific environmental sensitivity. Therefore, an Environmental 
Statement is not required.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main considerations in determining this application are;

 Principle of development
 Design and the impact on the character and appearance of the rural 

area
 Impact on neighbouring amenity
 Highway safety
 Drainage

Page 66

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1507/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V1886/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P03/V1348
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P02/V1909/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P00/V0381
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P99/V0326
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P99/V0016
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P97/V0913
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/V0586


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

 Other matters
 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
 Sustainable development

5.2 Principle of development

The settlement hierarchy set out in policy CP3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
identifies Little Coxwell as a smaller village within the Western Vale sub-area. 
Smaller villages have a low level of services and facilities, where any 
development should be modest and proportionate in scale and primarily be to 
meet local needs. The site is considered to fall outside of the built area of Little 
Coxwell and is therefore situated within the open countryside.

5.3 The application proposes to demolish existing outbuildings to the rear of the 
pub and replace them with a timber clad building for eight letting rooms. Policy 
GS6 of the Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies supports the redevelopment of 
existing buildings providing; the existing buildings are of permanent and 
substantial construction, were not originally constructed for agriculture or 
forestry, and does not involve the creation of an additional dwelling. The 
redevelopment must not have a materially greater visual impact on the 
countryside than the current buildings, and the new use must be as sustainable 
as the current use. Finally, the replacement building must be on the site of the 
existing building, unless an alternative site would have clear benefits.

5.4 The replacement building would be situated on the same site as the existing 
outbuildings, although the proposed replacement building would be larger in 
scale and appearance than the existing outbuildings. The building would also 
have a larger footprint and have a height 1.85 metres taller than the existing 
outbuildings. However, it is considered that the building would be constructed 
of materials that would conserve the views from the wider rural area.

5.5 The site is situated within a rural area in the open countryside, the proposed 
use would create a greater intensification than the existing outbuildings. It is 
therefore considered that the proposed use is unsustainable.

5.6 Policy CP31 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 encourages new development to 
advance the visitor economy for leisure and business purposes. It encourages 
development to be situated within the built-up areas of the district’s market 
towns, local service centres, larger and smaller villages, Milton Park and 
Harwell Campus, and service areas on the main transport corridors. Outside 
the above locations, small-scale development to support the visitor economy 
will be supported providing the proposals are in keeping with the scale and 
character of the locality and would not adversely affect heritage assets or their 
setting.

5.7 The site is situated within the open countryside outside of the settlement 
hierarchy set out in policy CP3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1. The development 
is not considered to harm the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area, although it is important to reference that policy seeks to concentrate C1 

Page 67



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

development towards the districts urban areas and transport service areas, 
such as the nearby towns of Faringdon and Wantage, and Buckland Service 
Station where planning consent was recently granted for a motel 
(P15/V1035/FUL). Buckland service station is situated approximately 7 miles 
further east of the A420.

5.8 Policy CF5 of the Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies seeks to protect public 
houses. CF5 states that outside of the five main towns, the redevelopment or 
change of use of premises which are used or have been used as a public 
house will be permitted providing it has been demonstrated that it would not be 
economically viable to continue with the public house use. The policy also 
requires applications to demonstrate that there is no reasonable likelihood of 
an alternative employment, retail, service or community use, or a mix of these 
uses, of benefit to the economic or social use of the village making use of the 
building.

5.9 Policy DP9 of the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 follows the advice contained 
within Policy CF5. Policy DP9 states that proposals that would result in the loss 
of a public house will only be permitted where it can be clearly demonstrated 
that the retention of the public house is not economically viable and it can be 
demonstrated that all reasonable efforts have been made to sell or let the 
property as a public house on the open market at a realistic price, and there is 
no reasonable likelihood of a suitable alternative facility or service of benefit to 
the local community making use of the building. 

5.10 The applicants have failed to demonstrate that the public house is no longer 
economically viable. Furthermore, no details have been provided to show that 
the pub has been advertised for sale or lease.

5.11 In view of the above the principle of development is therefore unacceptable. 
The Plough is situated in a rural area within the open countryside and the 
Western Vale Sub-Area. No evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that 
the existing C4 public house use is no longer economically viable, nor has it 
been demonstrated that all reasonable efforts have been made to sell or let the 
property as a public house on the open market at a realistic price. Furthermore, 
insufficient information has been provided to show that there is no reasonable 
likelihood of a suitable alternative facility or service of benefit to the local 
community.

5.12 The proposed change of use would result in a large development in the open 
countryside. The development would be contrary to Policy CP31 of the Local 
Plan 2031, Part 1 which will only support large developments in exceptional 
circumstances, for example to support or enhance enjoyment of a significant 
and established visitor attraction where this cannot reasonably be achieved 
from a town or village location. The proposed change of use would represent 
an unsustainable form of development within the open countryside that is 
contrary to policy CF5 of the Local Plan Saved Policies 2011, policy CP31 of 
the Local Plan 2031, Part 1, policy DP9 of the Draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2, 

Page 68



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

and paragraphs 8a, and 84 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
(July 2018).

5.13 Design and impact on the character and appearance of the area

The NPPF is clear that good design is indivisible from good planning, it 
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design 
is a key aspect of sustainable development and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people. It emphasises the importance to plan 
positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all 
development, including individual buildings.

5.14 The NPPF also adds that the visual appearance and the architecture of 
individual buildings are very important factors, securing high quality and 
inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic considerations. Great weight should be 
given to outstanding or innovative designs which raise the standard of design 
more generally in the area. Permission should be refused for development of 
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions.

5.15 Core Policy 44 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1 seeks to protect the key features 
that contribute to the nature and quality of the district’s landscape. Core Policy 
37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that new development must 
demonstrate high quality design that responds positively to the site and its 
surroundings, creating a distinctive sense of place through high quality 
townscape that physically and visually integrates with its surroundings. It adds 
that development must be visually attractive, and the scale, height, massing, 
and materials should be appropriate to the site and its surrounding context.

5.16 The proposed development has a larger footprint and height than the existing 
outbuildings. Despite this, the site is screened via existing mature planting to 
the northern and eastern boundaries. The building will also be constructed of 
materials that would conserve and protect the character and appearance of the 
surrounding rural area. It is therefore considered that the development would 
accord with Core Policy CP37 and CP44 of the Local Plan 2031, Part 1. 

5.17 Impact on neighbouring amenity

Core Policy 37 of the Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DC9 of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 are of importance with regard to the potential 
impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy DC9 states that development will not 
be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring 
properties and the wider environment. 

5.18 The impact upon neighbouring amenity will be minimal as the dwelling will be 
sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. Furthermore, the 
scale of development is not considered to create a harmful impact towards 
neighbouring occupants. It is therefore considered that the criteria contained 

Page 69



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

within Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and DC9 of the Local Plan 
2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part 2 will be adhered to.

5.19 Highway safety

The NPPF promotes sustainable transport modes, whilst seeking to ensure that 
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; and any 
significant impacts from the development can be mitigated. Paragraph 109 
states that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

5.20 The site is situated within a spacious site with sufficient car parking. The 
vehicular access will remain as existing whilst there will be sufficient space for 
vehicles to safely park and turn.

5.21 It is therefore considered that the proposed development will comply with the 
criteria contained within Policy DC5 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
Saved Policies, Policy CP35 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 
1, Policy DP16 of the draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2, and 
the NPPF.

5.22 Drainage

The site is not situated in flood zones 2 or 3. Therefore fluvial flooding is 
unlikely to occur at the site. The drainage officer has requested additional 
information that would need to be covered via a planning condition if approved. 

5.23 The drainage officer has stated that the application form states that a 
connection to the mains sewer is proposed. Having reviewed Thames
Waters mapping system there does not appear to be an adopted foul sewer 
neither at the site or in the proximity. Additional information will therefore be 
required with regards to the proposed discharge of waste and foul water.

5.24 It is therefore considered that the development would not affect the quality of 
water resources or create flooding at the development site or elsewhere. The 
development therefore complies with Policy DC12 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan Saved Policies 2011, and Policy CP42 of the Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2031, Part 1.

5.25 Other matters

Officers are aware that there are two unlawful flats on the first floor above the 
public house that require planning consent. An application was approved on 
22nd April 2009 (P99/V0326) for the extension of the landlord’s accommodation 
that had a restrictive occupancy condition to prevent the flat being sold or 
leased on the open market. 

Page 70



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

5.26 The Council’s equalities officer has raised concerns that the development does 
not provide provision for disabled customers other than accessible parking. 
Level access must be provided through the existing public house building to the 
bed and breakfast accommodation, and level access should be provided in at 
least one of the proposed bed and breakfast units. Furthermore, a disabled 
access toilet should be provided within the public house building.

5.27 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Policy CP7 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 states that the 
Council will work with infrastructure providers and stakeholders to identify 
requirements for infrastructure provision and services for new development and 
will seek to co-ordinate infrastructure delivery. The Council has implemented its 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as from 1st November 2017. Planning 
applications which are decided after 1st November 2017 may be liable to pay 
the levy. 
 

5.28 Under the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by Vale 
of White Horse Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations, new dwellings and new residential development of 100m2 or more 
will be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy. In this instance as the 
development is for a C1 use CIL will not be required.

5.29 The application is therefore not CIL liable.

5.30 Sustainable development

When considering development proposals, the Council is required to take a 
positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

5.31 The National Planning Policy Framework places a strong emphasis on 
sustainable development. All planning applications must result in sustainable 
development with consideration being given to economic, social and 
environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal. The development will 
likely have implications on the local economy. No evidence has been submitted 
to demonstrate that the existing C4 public house use is no longer economically 
viable. The environmental considerations have been assessed in terms of the 
impact on the character and appearance of the area and for the reasons given 
above are considered acceptable. Social considerations overlap those of 
environmental in terms of amenity. As these have been found unacceptable the 
development is not considered to constitute sustainable development.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of 

the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to 
the draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2 but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s policies 
hold limited weight. 

Page 71



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

6.2 Sustainable development has three strands - social, economic and 
environmental. The site is situated within an unsustainable location. No 
evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that the existing C4 public house 
use is no longer economically viable. Although there would be a change 
environmentally to the local area officers consider that this change, as set out 
above, would not be sufficient to cause harm. 

6.3 The Plough is situated in a rural area within the open countryside and the 
Western Vale Sub-Area. No evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that 
the existing C4 public house use is no longer economically viable, nor has it 
been demonstrated that all reasonable efforts have been made to sell or let the 
property as a public house on the open market at a realistic price. Furthermore, 
insufficient information has been provided to show that there is no reasonable 
likelihood of a suitable alternative facility or service of benefit to the local 
community.

6.4 The proposed change of use would result in a large development in the open 
countryside. The development would be contrary to Policy CP31 of the Local 
Plan 2031, Part 1 which will only support large developments in exceptional 
circumstances, for example to support or enhance enjoyment of a significant 
and established visitor attraction where this cannot reasonably be achieved from 
a town or village location. The proposed change of use would represent an 
unsustainable form of development within the open countryside that is contrary 
to policy CF5 of the Local Plan Saved Policies 2011, policy CP31 of the Local 
Plan 2031, Part 1, policy DP9 of the Draft Local Plan 2031, Part 2, and 
paragraphs 8a, and 84 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 
2018).

6.5 In weighing up the planning balance, officers consider the scheme is 
unacceptable and recommend refusal.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
statutory Development Plan comprises;

- The Local Plan 2031 Part 1
- The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
- The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031
- Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon, 
           Radley, Great Coxwell, and Longworth.

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF)
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)

Page 72



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document 
            (SPD) (March 2015)
- Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 
           (December 2016)
- Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
            Additional Sites
- Building for Life 12

Other Relevant Legislation

- Human Rights Act 1998
- The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into  
           account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this  
           report.
- Equality Act 2010
- In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its 
           equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the   
           Equality Act 2010.

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP06  -  Meeting Business and Employment Needs
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP20  -  Spatial Strategy for Western Vale Sub-Area
CP31  -  Development to Support the Visitor Economy
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP44  -  Landscape

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to 
the proposed development consist of:

GS6  -  Redevelopment of buildings outside settlements
DC5  -  Access
DC6  -  Landscaping
DC7  -  Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10  -  The Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Development
NE7  -  The North Vale Corallian Ridge
CF5  -  Public Houses

The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites complements 
the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for the Vale's 
proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be met within the 
City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed development management 

Page 73



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 January 2019

policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which replace the saved 
policies of the Local Plan 2011.  It also allocates additional development sites 
for housing.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to:
• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the 
           preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies 
          (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight 
           that may be given); and
• The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan 
           to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging  
           plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may   
           be given).

The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2: 
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23 
February 2018 for independent examination. The draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 is 
currently under examination.

Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging Local 
Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight.

The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and 
Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development consist 
of:

DP9 – Public houses
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP24 – Effect of neighbouring or previous uses on new developments
DP25 – Noise pollution

Case officer – Andy Heron
Email – andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone – 01235 422600

Page 74

mailto:andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



P
age 81


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 P18/V2226/FUL - 18 North Avenue, Abingdon, OX14 1QN
	P18/V2226/FUL - 18 North Avenue ABINGDON - appendices
	Appendix 1 previous Committee Report
	Appendix 2 part 1 18 North Avenue_Daylight Planning_v3
	Appendix 2 part 2 ERS CONSULTANTS LTD_18 North Avenue
	Elevations Proposed drwgno PA-05
	PA-05 [Proposed Elevations]
	Section-1
	Section-2
	Section-3
	Section-4


	Elevations Proposed Street View drwgno PA-06
	PA-06 [Street Elevation]
	Section-5


	Location Plan drwgno PA-01
	PA-02 Existing Block Plan Rev PL1
	PA-03 Proposed Block Plan Rev PL2
	PA-04 Proposed Plan Rev PL2


	8 P18/V3102/CM - North of the A420 Botley Road to south of the A423 ring road
	P18/V3102/CM - North of the A420 Botley Road to south of the A423 ring road - appendices
	Site Location Plan for Ctte
	Willow Walk bridge


	9 P18/V2726/FUL - The Plough Inn, Little Coxwell, Faringdon, SN7 7SR
	P18/V2726/FUL - The Plough Inn, Little Coxwell, Faringdon, SN7 7SR - appendices
	Location Plan drwgno E001.01.A
	Block Plan drwgno 002.01.A
	Elevation Plan Proposed drwgno 030.01
	Floor Plan Existing drwgno E010.01
	Floor Plan Existing drwgno E011.01
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 010.01.A
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 011.01.A



